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KEY UNIVERSITY INFORMATION AND MANAGEMENT

(a) Background Information

Nfama Ngina University Collcge OINUq is a Publ-ic Universiw located along Kenl,atta Road at Nlutomo,

(]arundu South Sub-(lounty, Kiambu (Jr>unq, Kcnya about 14 Kil<>mctcrs from -I'hika Superhighway. It

was initially under the mentotship of NIoi Universiry until 2017 when the Nlinistq' of I'lducation vide a

letter from the Cabinet Secreta4' datcd 24'h October 2016 that handed ovcr its mentorship to Kenyatta

Universiry ffU). 'fhe Council of Nloi Univcrsiq' consequendv handed over the mentoring of (I,INUC) to

Kenyatta Universitv Council on 13'h day of.f anuary 2017.

In the same ,vear 2017,I(envatta Universiq, Senate approved thc mounting of three degree programmes

for NINUC. In this regard KLI requested thc Kenya Universitl' Colleges Central Placement Sen'ices

(KUCCPS) to considcr placing students under IrINU(i for September 2077 intake. Thus the first 79

students were placed undcr the Collegc it the 201,7 /201ti Acadcmic Year, but were to take their studies at

KU ll{ain Oampus, since there wcre no phvsical facilities at NINLI(I site at (larundu.

f'he land on which NINUC is siruated measurcrs approximately 10.3 acrcs which also accommodate

N{utomo Priman' School on three (3) acres. 
-ltre process of transferring the ownership of the land tide

from Kcnyatta University to the N{NLI() is at advanced stage. Upon thc completion of Phasc 1 profect,

thc Commission of Llniversiqv Irducation (CLt t',) cvaluated thc Universitl Collcge and recommended to

the Cabinet Secretary for Ilducation for gazcttment.'fhc Universiq College was gazette on 17'h September

2021 through I-egal Notice No. 193 datcd 17'h Septcmber, 2021 published in the Kenya Gazettc

Supplement No. 177.

Ihe first batch of srudents to takc their srudics at the Lrniversitl' College, IJachelor of Computer Science

were admitted in October 2021.'lhe Kenva Llniversin' Oolleges Central Placement Scrvices (KUCCPS)

has alreadl'placed studcnts in nine programs for 2022 /2023 Acadcmic. 'fhe number of srudents and

programmes are expccted to grow each successive vears.

lll
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KEY UNIVERSITY INFORMATION AND NIANAGEMENT

(b) Principal Activities

I\Iama Ngrna Universiq, College mandate is to pror-ide qualiq'and relevant education, training, research
and outreach.

(c) Key Management

The University's day to day management is under the following organs

! Principal

! Deputy Principal

! Registrar

- Finance Officet

I Human Resource O fficer

(d) Fiduciary Managemcnt

The key management personnel who held ofFrce during the Frnancial endcd 30th lune 2022 are as listed
below;

No.
1,

2

3

4.

5.

Designation
Principal

Depuh, I)rincipal

Registrar

Irinancc O fFrcer

Human Resource Officer

Name
Pro[. Jame s B. Kung'u

Prof. Sauda Swaleh

Dr.Daniel Nluthce

lvlr. Peter Kamuri

NIr. Ignaruis Gichia

(e) Fiduciary Oversight Arrangements

The goveming organs of the Llniversitl' College are

The University Council;
In furtherance to Section 35 of the r\ct and Section 12(1) of the Lcgal Notice, the Council shall govern,
control, and administer the Universiq' College.

The Council shall;
1. Exercise prudent leadership, innovative entelprise, and good judgment in directing the University

and shall alwavs charter in the best interest o[ the LIniversit].

lv
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2. I,lnsure that a propcr managcmcnt structurc is in placc and make sure that the structute, functions
to maintain corporate intcgriq', reputation and responsibilirv.

3. Nlonitor and evaluate the implementation of suategies, policics and management criteria and plans
of thc Universiry College.

4. Revierv the viabiliq' and fmancial sustainabilirl' of the Lrniversiq' College, and shall do so at least

once cvery ycar.

5. Ensure that the [niversiq Collegc complies with all the relevant laws, regulations, governance
practices, accounting and auditing standards.

The University College Management Board:
Pursuant to Section 14(1) of thc Legal Notice, therc shall bc a Universih (irllege Irlanagcment lloatd
rvhich shall assist in the day-to-day managcment of the Universiq' Collcgc.

Membership
i. 'l'he principal

n. 'l.he Dcpuh, I)rincipal

rii. Regisuar Acadcmic and Students A ffats
iv. liinance Officer
v. l)irector Human Itesource & Adm-rnistration

vi. Human Resources ()fFrcer

Roles and Responsibilities of the Board
'I'hc Collcgc l\Ianagcmcnt I)oard shall;

1. Provide advisory support to the Principal;

2. Encouragc the rationalization and efficiency of thc universiqv College servtces;

3. Co-ordinate and c()ntrol the dcvcbpment, planning, management and administration of the

Universiry Collcgc and its re sources.

4. Submit proposals to the univcrsiq' College Council on annual budgets, development priorities,

staff development plans, terms and conditions o[ scn'ice, fund raising srategies, students' rvelfare,

public relation policies, academic partnership and linkages.

5. Authorize the initiation or defcnd of legal proceedings.

6. Propose to the Council rules and regulations for the administration of Llniversity College.

1 . Propose establishment of University College charges and fee s.

8. Perform any other duties assigned.
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College Academic Board
There shall be an Academic lloard which shall bc responsible for acadcmic matters

Membership
The membetship of the Academic Board shall include-

o The principal;

r The Deputy Principal

o The Deans o[ Schools

o The Directors of Insrirutes, Centers and other academic units;

r 'Ihe Chairpersons of teaching Departments;

o University College librarian;
o The Professors o[ the university College;

o Registrar Academic and Students Affairs;

o Legal Officer;

o Finance Officer
o Head o[ student affairs.

o One representarive of each board of the Faculties, Instirutes and Schools appointed by the

respective boards from amongst its members.

o Two members elected by the Students Organization of N{ama Ngina University College who shall

however not be entided to attend deliberations of the academic Board on matters which ate

considered by the Chairperson of the Academic Board to be confidential, or which relate to

examinations, the general discipline of students, and other related matters.

The Academic Board may admit some members as and when necessarl'

Porvers of the Board
The powers of the Univcrsiq Collegc r\cademic ll<>ard shall bc as prcscribed undet Scction 13 of the I-egal

Notice

Conduct of Business

F Academic Board mectings shall be held at least twice in each acadcmic semester.

P .,\n almanac shall be approved b1, the r\cademic Board at the end of evcry acadcmic year.

i fhe principal shall be the Chairperson o[ thc Academic Board and shall preside at all meetings

except when absent then the Deputl' Principal, ,\cademic, Research, Ouueach and Srudents

Affairs, shall chair.

F In the absence of the Principal and the Depuq' Principal, ,'\cademic, Research, ()ureach and

Srudents A ffairs, the Principal shall appoint any othcr Deputy Principal or l)ean to chair the

meeting.

i The Academic Board ma1,, subiect to such limitations as it ma1'deem fit, delegate any of its powers

or duties to Committees consisting of persons from amongst its members and mav empower any

such Committee or Committees to act alone or jointlv rvith any Committee appointed by the

Council.
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) The Rcgistrar Acadcmic Research, ()urcach and Students A ffairs shall serve as the Secretary to
thc Academic lloard.

P The Secretary to Committees o[Academic Board shall be provided for under Schedule III of these

Starutcs.

! Subject to the provision o[ this Statute, the .\cademic Board shall have powers to regulate, as it
may deem fit, its own procedurcs and that of its (lommittees.

Responsibilities of Academic Board

The responsibilities of the Academic Board shall bc as outlined in Section 13(3) of the Legal

Notice.

Recommending to the Council the establishmcnt, ()r abolition or harmonization of Faculties,

Schools, Institutes, Units, l)epartments, and ccntcrs.

In consultation with thc Scnatc, sctting thc datcs of the acadcmic r-ear and determining the

schedule of academic programmcs.

In Consultation with thc Scnate, approving all s1,llabi, making regulations governing methods of
assessing and examining academic pcrformance of srudents, and proposing rcgulations regarding

eligibiliq o[ persons for admission t() a course of studv.
'I'he Academic Board mav subjcct to random rcvierv, assess thc entire qualification process f<rt

arvard of l)egree, Dipbmas and Certificates with thc aim of identifving flarvs, upon which thev

shall recommend to Senate and thereaftcr to Council for withdrawal and cancellation of degrees,

diplomas, and certificatc.

a
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KEY UNIVERSITY INFORMATION AND MANAGEMENT

(f) University Collcge Headquarters

Mama Ngina University College
P.O Box 444-01030
Gatundu.

(g) University College Contacts
Telephone: +254 02087 04601
I\{obile: 07 02125192, 07 84 9 151 57

Email: principal@mnu.ac.ke, info@mnu.ac.ke
Website: www.mnu.ac.ke

(h) University College Bankcrs
Co-operative Bank of Kenya Ltd.
P.O. Box 48231 - 00100
Nairobi

Kenya Commercial Bank Ltd
P. O. Box 30081
Natobi.

Equity Bank Ltd
P.O. Box 75104 - 00200
Nailobi

Family Bank Ltd
P.O. Box 741.45-00200
Nairobi

(i) Indcpendent Auditors
Auditor General
Anniversary f'owers
P.O. Box 30084 - 00100
GPO, Nairobi.

(j) Principal Legal Adviser

The Attorney General

State Law Office

Harambee Avenue

P.O. Box 40112

City Square 00200

Nairobi, Kenya

vllt



MEMBERS OF THE UNIVERSITY COUNCIL

Chairman of the Univcrsitv Council

DR. DAVID A. OGINDE
Dr. David A. Ogrndc has a PhD in Leadership from Regent Lrniversiqv, LrSA;

Master of Arts dcgree in Lcadcrship and a Ccrtificate in Professional
Nlediation from Pan ,'\frica (lhristian Llniversirv. He also holds a Diploma in
Managemcnt from Kcnva Institute o[ N{anagement, I)ost (iraduate Certificate
in Biblical Srudies from 'l'rinitv International Universiry, LISA and a Bachelot
of Architccture, B.Arch. from Llniversiq' of Nairobi.
Hc has sen'ed in various lcadership positions globall,v, regionallv and

nationally. I)avid is the immediate forme r Presiding Bishop of CITAIvI
,\ssemblies, and has also hcld various p<>sitions in the Church including his

current appointmcnt as the (lhairman, Er.angelical ,\lliance of Kenva (E r\K)
and Vice-(lhairman, Irvangclical Alliancc of Kenva ftom 2074 to 2019. Other appointment include;
Trustee; Hesabi]<a Trust, Chairman of thc Kenya (lhutch -faskforce, membcr of thc Board of Dircctors
of Biblica Iienya and he is also a Host o[thc I-eadership I'orum Program at Hope FNI Radio.

Dr. David Ogrnde is the Current and the 1" Chairman of the N{ama Ngina Lrniversity College Council,
having been appointcd on 3"r l)ecemb er 2022.

Member
AMB. SIMON NABUKWESI B.Ed, M. Ed., M.A, Ph.D.
Amb. Simon Nabukwesi is a member of lllama Ngina Llniversin' C<>llegc (louncil bl virruc of bcing the
Principal Secretary, State l)epartment o[ Scicnce and 'fechnologr.' in thc IUinistry of Iiducation, Sciencc

and f'cchnology. Previously, he has also sen'cd as I(e nva's High Oommissi<>nct to Canada and
Ambassador Plcnipotentia4, and Extra-ordinary to Cuba. Charrperson o[ the
,.\ssociation of directors of Irorcign Service r\cademies from the IGAI) Region from
2()16 to 2019. Head of IJuropc and Comm()nrvcalth Directorate in thc Nlinistry o[
l'orergn Affairs.

International Proiect N{anagement. He has a l)iploma Lcvcl trarning in Institutional lvlanagement at
Hiroshima University,.f apan a:nd a Pre-univcrsitv 'l'raining at thc National Youth Scn'ice (1986).

Member
Dr. Julius Muia PhD CPA (D, CPS (D, AKIB, ACIATb's
I)t. 

.f ulius Nluia is a membcr of Nlama Ngina Universin Collegc (louncil bv virrue of being thc Principal
Secretarl' at'fhe National f'rcasun'. Prior to this, he was thc Principal Secrctan' at thc State l)epartrnent

for Planning -'Ihc National 'I'rcasurl' and Planning. l)revious11,, hc rvas thc l)irector
(lencral, \'ision 2030 l)cliverv Sccrctariat to facilitatc thc implemcntation of \/ision
2030. Bcnveen April 200i1 and ()ctobcr 201(r, Dr. l\Iuia scn'cd as the Sccretarv,

National Flconomic and Social (louncil, Officc of the President. He is an alumnus of
the Llnil'crsih, of Nairobi rvith a Irirst Class Honours Degrce in ,\ccounting; I\{aster
l)egrcc and PhD in lrinance. His profcssional <lualifications includc: Ccrtihed Public
Accountant (CPA-K); Ccnified Public Secrctaq' (CPS-K), Associate Kenya Institute
of Bankers; ,\ssociatc Chartcred Institutc of .,\rbitrators; and Ccrtifred Coach.(\}'

lx
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Hc hr>lds ll.l 1d, I\1. Ird. in I',ducauon Planning and Nlanagcmcnt and NL\ in

I

I
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Member
Prof. Judith Mbula Bahemuka, PhD

Prof. .f udith NI. Bahemuka is currently a member of Department of Sociology
and Social $7orks at the Universiq' of NaLobi and UNI'ISC()/UNITWIN
Chair. She sen'es as a member of the (lommittee of I;,minent CONIIISA Elders
on Governance, Peacc and Securiq', and a membcr of UNESCO Intemational
Liaison Committee on Comparative I{nowledge. Other current appointments
include; Chancellor of thc Universiq, of I')ldoret and a member of Kenya Rural
Enterprise Programmc (KREP) Development Agency Board.
She has previouslv sen'ed in various national and global positions such as being

an Advisor for international organizations, Board member and a Chairperson in a public university. She

has also served as a Vice Chair of Kenya Commission for University Education and High Commissioner
to Canada and accredited to Cuba. Other appointments include; Ambassadorial role to the United Nations,
Executive Board membcrships and Chair of the National Committee on Nlanagement of Social
Transformarion QUOSI) Programme of LTNESCO.

Prof. Judith has been honored as a Goodwill Ambassador for Peace and Security in Kenya, and Global
Peace Foundation. She is also a renowned Consultant, with global recognition.

Member
Ms. Clare Asiko Abuodha (Advocate)
NIs. Clare is currendy the Head of Legal at the Institute of Certifred Public Accountants of Kenya. Prior

to that, she was the Legal ()fficer I at the Retircment Ilenefits Authority from 201,7

to 2021, and (Special Duq') Head of Legal Retiremcnt Benefits Authoriry from 2015

to 2017. Shc holds a LL.NI, ltlaster o[ Laws, LL.B, Bachelors of ],aws from the

Unir.ersiq' of Nairobi and a Bachelor o[ Arts in Business and Ivlanagement Studies

from Leeds Beckett University, United Kingdom. Clare is also a Certifled Public
Secretary and an advocate of the High (iourt o[Kenya and Commissioner for Oaths.
She has undcrtaken sevcral Professional Dcvelopment progtammes both nationallv
and intcrnationally and has also been in the forcfront in offering legal advisory

sen'ices in various National (]ovcrnment's c<>mmittce

Membet
Dr. Wambui Kristina Pratt
Dr. Kristina holds a MSC Education Psychology from Leigh University and a BSC Special Education from

Kutz'I'own State College and a Doctorate of Humane l,etters (Honoris Causa)

from Kenyatta Universiq'. Shc has sen'ed in various Boards in both public and

private sectot including being a Chairpcrson o[ the National Fund for the

Disabled of Kenva, a Council member o[ Kcnl'a Societl' for thc Blind, a

Committec member of Fl,ving Doctors' Socicrv of -r\frica among others.

IrIs. Krist-ina is nationalll' and internationallv recogniz.ed for her exemplary

contribution in thc socieq' which includc establishment of Kenya Instirute for
Special Education (KISE), and for her achievemcnts towards the works of thc Handicapped, a presidential

award by the United Statcs President Jimmy Carter in l\Iarch 1980. Othcr prcsidential awards include:

Elder of the ()rder of the Burning Spear (E,.B.S) and Chief of the ()rder of the Burning Spcar (C.B.S).
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Member
Hon. Gcotgc Kamau Muhoh<r
Hon. Gcorgc has a Phl) degrec in Iiducation Policy and Nlaster Dcgrce in Canon Law (Utbanian

Universiq', Rome). Hc also holds a Post (lraduatc Diploma in Intemational
Relations & Diplomatic Practice. ()eorge is currendr, the Chairman of Bismal
Investment Limitcd and an established Busincss/ Institutional leader having
served in various Nlinistedal dockets including Nlinistry o[ Tourism and Wildlife
(1986-1989), and Nlinistn'ofResearch, Science and-I'echnolo$ (1989-1992).
Other ke1, appointments include; r\ssistant l\{inister, I\{inist4' of Education,
Sciencc and'l'cchnologv (1 985- 1 9ti6), Director o[ Information (Lf N EP),
Nlanaging I)irector (KAA) and Nlcmbet o[ Parliament for Juja Constiruency
(1984-1992).

Member
Dr. Nvang'atc Arcba
I)r. Nvang'ate hold a PhD degree in l)octor of C)rganizational l)cvel<>pment and Transformation from
(lebu Dr>ctr>rs' Llniversi$, I)hilippines. He also has a N{astcr of Ilusincss .,\dministtation (NIBA), Human

Resource from Egerton Univcrsity and a l}achelor of Education (B.Ed) degree rn

Ilconomics and Business Studies ftom Univcrsitl' of Nairobi. Nyang'ate has a

rvealth of cxperience in I-cadership and Nlanagemcnt within the education scctor

having grorvn his carcer through the laddcr to become a Senior Depuq" Dtcctor
of Ilducation, [)irectorate of Higher I')ducation, a position hc held from 2009 to
2016.

Dr. Nvang'atc is an cxpcrt in Organizational Der.'elopment and lUanagement,

Human Rcsource l\Ianagcmcnt and l)evclopmcnt, Strategic IManagement and
()perations Nlanagcment

Ken atta Univll I
Prof. Paul Kuria Wainaina

Prof. Wainaina is thc Vice-(lhancellor Kenvatta Ltnivcrsitv, and is an cx-officio mcmber of thc Univcrsitv
(louncil, having becn appointed as thc \/icc-Chanccllor, I(cnyatta Universiq' r>n 26'h January 2018. He is

als<> Profcssor of Philosophv of l']ducation, Kcnvatta Univcrsitt'. Prior to his
appointment hc held various positions including Dcpu[' \/icc-Chancellor
(Administration) I(ent'atta Llnivcrsit]', Profcssor of Philosophy o[ Education,
Llniversi$ of Namibia, Professor of Philosophy of I'lducation of N{oi Universiq'
among othcfs.
He is an alumni of Unive rsin' of ;\lbcrta, Canadaa
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Prin l-Ex- ffi
PROF. JAMES B. KUNG'U (PH.D.)
Prof. James Biu Kung'u is the Ag. Principal of Nlama Ngina Universitl' College and thc Interim

? t
Chairman, East and Cenual Africa Regional Nenvork for African Network fot Agriculture, Agroforestry
and Natural Resource Ilducation, membcr of Inter-universiq' Council o[ East Africa committee for the
theme on r\griculture and Forest4'. He has spearheaded thc development of a number of intemational
collaborations OIOU, with many universities in r\frica, Iiurope, Asia and r\mericas. He is an extemal
examiner in four Kenyan universities and universities in Sudan, T.ambra and lvlalawi. He has published
widel,v and supervised many PhDs and Nlastcrs' students Prof. Kung'u is a member o[African Forestrl'
Forum, Forestrl' Societl, of Kenya, Association of Ilast Africa Ilnvironmental Impact Assessment,

African Nerwork of Tropical Soil Biologl'and Fertilitl', and a rcsource pcrson for the Kenya
Commission flor Universiq, Education.

xlt

I

fixecutive secretar)' of African Nenvork for ,\griculture, Agroforesry and
Narural Resources Education (ANAFII). He holds a PhD (Silviculrure and
Iiorest Influences) and an N{Sc (Silviculrurc and Forest Influcnces) degrees from
the Universiw of the PhiJ.ippincs Los lJaios and a Bachelor o[ Science
(Forestry) degree from N{oi Universitr', I(cnya. He is a Professor of Landscape
Restoration and Climate change. He has scn'ed bcforc as the Ag. Depuq \rice
Chancellor (Administration) and ,,\g. Deputl \'ice Chancellor (Finance and
Development), Director, Global -Iburism Resilience and (lrisis I\{anagement
Centre, l)ean, School o[ I,]nvironmental Srudies and Chairman, Department of
Llnvtonmental Sciences at Kenyatta Universitv. He has also served as the

(



Chairman of the Universitv Council
DR. DAVID A. OGINDE
The Chairperson of the Council chairs Council mectings and exercises the powers and privileges as

provided for in the Univctsity Act and N{ama Ngina liniversity College

Statutes.

Princinal
PROF. JAMES B. KUNG'U (PH.D.)
The principal is thc Chief Iixecutive Ofhcer o[ the Universiw Oollegc having the following p()wers

. Is the academic, administrative and financial head of the University

College.
r Have the overall responsibilin, for the direction, organization and

administration of thc Universitl' College.
t Is the Accounting Officer of the Universiry College.

1 ? I
D Prin mtc Rc n AR SA

Prof. Satrda M.Srvirleh, B.Ed. (KU), M.Sc. (KU), Ph.D. (Humboldt University of Betlin-
Germany)

'l'hc Dcpuq' Principal ;\cadcmic, Rescarch, ()utreach and Studcnt A ffairs

(AROST\) is the hcad of the Division and is responsiblc to the Principal.

She offers lcadership, dircction, organization and adminisuation of
programmes of the Division.

xlll
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CHAIRMAN & PRINCIPAL OFFICERS OF THE UNIVERSITY COLLEGE
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DR. DANIEL W. MUTHEE, B.Ed. (KU), M.Ed. (KU), Ph.D. (Moi)

'fhe Registrar Academic, Research, Outreach and Srudent A ffats (AROSA) is the
principal assistant to the Deputy Principal (AROSA). He is in charge of the
following dockets:

o z\cademic r\ffaits
o Research

r Outreach
o Srudent Affairs

He also performs duties delegated or assigned by Principal ar,df ot by the Depuq'
Principal (,\ROSA).

Head Human Resource performs Human resource and administration matters

as delegated or assigned bv the Universirl' College Principal

Finance Offrcer
CPA. KAI\IURI PETER, BBM. (Moi), MBA (KU-On going) CPA (K.)

-fhe [iinance Officer is the head o[ Finance Department and the technical officet
responsible for Frnancial stratcgv and pohcy mattcrs. Hc is tesponsible to thc
Depuq' Principal (Administtation, Finance and Planning) and rvork close\' with
the Principal as the Chief Accouflting Officer of the Universitl' College.
-Ihc Finance Officer supcrintends and manage s the finances and financial
reporting obligations, and pcrforms such other duties delegated or assigned to
him by the Principal and [)e puw Pincipal (r\dministration, Iiinancc and
Planning).

t1

Human Rcsource Officer
MR. IGNATItIS W. GICHIA, B.Ed. (KU), PGD, HRM (MOI), M.A. (Manchester, Un
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It is my delight and privilege to present the Annual Report and Financial

Statcment for the 'l'cn N{onths period ended 30 June 2022 for the Mama

Ngina Universiw College.

'fhc N{inist4' of I'lducation appointed Kcnyatta LTniversity to mentor the

establishment and grorvth of Nlama Ngina Lrniversiq' College in 2016.

Since then, the L'lnivcrsin' worked closcll'rvith other stakeholders to ensure

that thc O<>llegc fulFrlls the ncccssal' legal and statuton' rcquirements to bccome opctational

It is after fulfilment of these re<luirements that the N{ama Ngina Universiq' Oollcge O{NLIC) Council was

appointed on 3"r Deccmbel 2021 -I'hrough the ()azette Notice No. 13129 following the Gazettment of

the MNLIC as a consdtuent College of Kenyatta Universiq' on 17'h Septembel2021 which was within the

vear under rcview.

I would wish to highlight that in the Univetsitl' Oollegc income for the ten months period amounted to

Kshs. (r1,11t3,239 which is composed o[ (]ovcrnment (irants, 'fuitions fees and other intemally generated

incomes. 'Ihc expenditurc for the few months thc College have operated on its orvn amountcd to Kshs.

21,446,7 63 rvhich is composcd of Personnel llmolumcnts and Operation and lv{aintenance expenses.

'Ihc managemcnt is optimistic that our rcvenues rvill increase in the coming hnancial vcar in particular
'fuition and othcr fccs as wc anticipate a higher studcnt enrollment in the next intake.

Mama Ngina Llniversiq' College Council and Nlanagement have devclopcd thc l" University Col,ege 2022

- 2021 Strxegc Plan which entails eight (8) kcy prioriq'areas anchored on the insdrudon's core functions,

Kenyan llig 4 agendas, Vision 2030, United Sustainable Devclopment Goals (SDGs) and African Union

2063.'Ihis is a major tool which is gearcd to give the Lrniversiry Collcge a clear roadmap in soh-ing societal

needs as well as mccting its goals and ob)ectives.

xv
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On infrastructure

Under the mentorship of Kenvatta Universiw, Nlama Ngina Universin' College constructed a few facilities

to facilitate operationalization of the Universih, College. fhe Univetsiq' College is committed to establish

more facilities in view of obtaining the required infrastrucrural capacrty,, for quality training and research

as well as serr"ice.

We w.ill continue to rvork closely with the Govemment and other Collaboradng partners to provide highlv

competitive and versatile graduates which the Country and Region need to solve emerging issues.

I take this opportuniry to thaflk the Govcrnment of I(enya and all stakeholders, both internal and external

for their continued support.

Lasdy I want to thank my fellow members of Council, Universiq' College Nlanagement, members of staff

and students for their effort, support, team work and achievements realized in the period ended 30thJune

2022.

D r. David A. Oginde

Chairman of Council, Mama Ngina University Cotlege
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PRINCIPAL'S REPORT
On behalf of Nlama Ngina Universiq' College O{NUC), I take this

opporrunin' t() convey mv pgatirude to the Nlinistry' as I present the

College's hnancial results for the vear ended June 30th 2022.

Mama Ngina University College (MNUC) is a public Universiry College

and is named in honor of Kenya's Irirst Lady, Mama Ngina Kenyatta, the

wife of thc first President of the Republic of Kenya, the late lMzee Jomo

Kenvatta. Referred to as 'N{other o[ the Nation', Nlama Ngrna is the

embodiment of resilience and commitment of Kenyan women and

mothers. 'I'hc national historical connectivity is significandy compounded

by the fact that Kiambu County in which the University College is l<>cated is where the founding father of

this nation got in c()ntact with formal education. 'I'he populati<-rn of Kiambu Counq' is approximatelv

2,519,000 people and according to UNIIS(l() standards, such a population should have several universities

to support its development.

'I'he N{ama Ngina University Collegc OINUC) was gazetted b,v the N{inistrl' of Education on 17'h

September, 2027 as a (lonstiruent Collegc of Kenyatta Universin' through a Kenya gtazette Supplement

No. 177, legal Notice No. 193. Follorving the aforementioned gazettment, the Govcmment through the

N(inistry of Education appointed the 1'' NINUC Council on 3'd l)ccember,2022 undcr a Gazette Notice

No. 13129.

Unlike many other Universiq' Colleges, IUama Ngina Univcrsity did not inherit any infrastructure, but

instead it is rel,ving on the Nlinistq' for financial support to put up all facilities and the National Land

(lommission to acquirc more land on its bchalf. 'l'he local communities have already' signed the lettet o[

awards and ate waiting to be compensated.

r\ frve-year Strategic Plan (2022-2027) has bccn developed rvhich marks an important milestone i" g*ditg

the Universi8 Collcge in laying foundations for strengthening and dcepening o[ intellectual, scholarl,v,

research and innovation sen'ices, in line rvith Kenl-2'5 \'isirn 2030, the Big Four r\genda, A frica Union

.,\gcnda 2063 and the Lrnited Nations Sustainablc Developmcnt Goals (SDGs)

Thc Strategic plan highlights the sffategies to be adopted to cnable the Univcrsitv Oollege achieve its

objective. In keeping rvith the abovc mandate, the Nlama Ngina Lrniversin' College seri'es to install and

maintain a sustainablc platform for coopcration bctrvcen and among the various stakeholdets, in

xvt I
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addressing common prioriq' challenges in intellectual, scholarly, rescarch and innovation services in the

region and the world.

In keeping up with the above mandate, NINUC serves to install and maintain a sustainable platform for

cooperation between and among the various stakeholders, in addressing common prioriW challenges in

Kenya. This, therefore, underscores the stategic role o[ II{NUO to pool its resources in order to achieve

its long term goals and obiectives. 'I'he implementation of this plan will be coordinated from the Principal's

o ffice.

Performance

For the first half of the financial year 2021/2022 frnancial management of NINLTC was undertaken by

Kenyatta University and Government grants were channeled through it but form February 2022 upon

opening of N{NUC accourlts the Govemment grants rvere directed to IUNLTC accounts.

In the second half of the year the income of N{NUC amouflted to Kshs. 61,183,239 which is composed

of Government Grants, Tuitions fees and other internally generated incomes.'fhe expendirure for the few

months the College have operated on its own amounted to Kshs. 21,446,163 which is composed of

Personnel Emoluments and Operation and Maintenance expenses. ,\ devclopment grant amoundng to

Kshs.65 million was granted by the govemment for payment of ongoing projects namely: Construction

of Administration Block and Lecture Theatre.

ACHIEYEMENTS

Duing the year under review, MNUC undertook the following activities:

l. Medical camp:

On Sarurday 5th March 2022, N{NUC held its fust medical camp in partnership with the Aga Khan

University Hospital Nairobi (AKUHN) as a communit) outreach activiq'. The medical camp provided

free cervical and breast cancer screening to the local communiry and members o[ University College.

Prior to the medical checks up, the doctors spoke to women present on what signs to look out for in

relation to different forms of cancer and demonstrated ways thcy could conduct self-screening, where

applicable.

The Aga Khan Universitl' hospital also provided triage sen'ices, which were run by eight (8) nurses,

where community members in attendance got thet blood pressure and weight checked as well as being

given nutrirional advice. The number attended to was 150 women which surpassed the 80-100 ladies

that were expected.

xvlll
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2. Envitonmental day

On Friday 22nd Aprl2022, N{NUC held its very hrst environmental day/ trcc planting day with support

from the NINUC Council, Kenya Forest Scn'ice and other stakeholders. The Kenya liorest Sen-ice,

Kiambu Counh' [ico-System (]onsen'ator providcd 300 scedlings.

3. Procurementtraining

,^\s a way of empowering the local communiw, the Procurement office put together training flor special

groups (women, youth and persons with disabilit.ies) within the gteater (]arundu on Friday 6th May

2022. The goal was to equip the communiq'rvith the knorv-horv and skills on how to participate in the

upcoming and furure tendering proccsses at N{NUC and elsewhere b1'learning about:

r Preference/ reserved groups.

o r\ccess to government procurement opportunities (AGPO).

r Registration of companies.

o Procurement process.

4. Form Four leavers Career day

With many form four leavers about to join University, a gap was identiFred in that most of them were

unaware of h<xv to properly Frll applications and navigate the Kenya LTniversities and Colleges Central

Placemcnt Sen'ice (KUCCPS) potal.

With that, personnel at the academics officc organized a Oareer Day on Tuesday 31st May, 2022wth

the aim of:

. Guiding srudcnts on career choices and funding options.

o 'feaching students how to navigate the KUCCPS portal to register for degree courses.

'l'he event was put together rvithin a very limited time pcriod and was able to attract close to 70 form

four leavers.

5. Covid- 19 vaccinations

'l'he IvINUC hcalth clinic was able to administer 700 covid-19 vaccinations from the month of

November 2021 to )une 2022.
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The vaccinations administered were first doses, second doses and boosters to both the community

around us and IvINUC staff members.'I'here was a ver]'positive response from communiq' members

who were able to easilv access these vaccines.

Appreciation

In conclusion, I wish to take this opportunity to convey my appreciation and gatitude to the University

College Council, Management and members of staflf for their commitment and effort in laying the NINUC

foundation and strucrures for the attainment of its mandate.

Lasdy, I would like to thank the Government, our suppliers, sen'ice providers and all stakeholders for

their continued support and co-operation.

PROF.JAMES B. KUNG'U (PH.D.)

Principal Mama Ngina University College

(
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STATEMENT OF MNUC's PERFOMANCE AGAINST PREDETERMINED OBJECTIVES
FOR FY 2o2t/2022

Section 81 Subsection 2 O of thc Public fiinance IUanagement Act, 2012 requires the accounting officer

to include in the financial statement, a statement of the national govemment entiq"s perfotmance against

predetermined objectives.

NINUC has developed a five-vear Strateg'ic Plan Q022-2027) which marks an important milestone in

guiding the Universiq' College in lay.ing foundations for strengthening and deepening of intellectual,

scholarlv, research and innovation services, in line with Kenya's Vision 2030, the Big Four Agenda, Africa

Union Agenda 2063 ard the United Nations Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs). It highlights the

strategies to be adopted to enable thc Universitl' Collegc achieve its obiective. In line with the abor.e

mandate, Mama Ngina Universirl College sen'es to install and maintain a sustainable platform for

cooperation between and among the various stakeholders, in addressing common priority challenges in

intellectual, scholarly, rcsearch and innovation scn'ices in the tegion and the world. This, therefore,

underscores thc strategic role of NINLIO to pool its resources in order to achieve its long term goals and

objectives.

The implemcntation of this plan will be coordinated from the Principal's ofhce. The Nlanagement team

of N{ama Ngina Llniversiq' Collcge, responsible f<rr carry'ing out the day-to-day operations of the

University, wish to cxpress our full commitmcnt and dedication on the implementation and realization of

the set goals and targets, as espouscd in thc plan.

KEY PRIORITYAREAS

1. Academic Excellence

N{ama Ngina Universitl' College desircs to create a learning cnvir<)nmcnt that offers qualiq' and memorable

acadcmic experience bv offering market-driven programmcs that are student-focused by adoption of

innovative approaches to teaching and learning. 'l'his rvill cut a niche' fot NINLTC and make it uniquely

different from othcr Universities. The academic programmcs rvill plal' a pivotal role in producing

innovative, creative and high\' cthical graduates with skills to contribute towards achievement of the

I(envan Big 4 r\genda, Vision 2030, I\,IT'I'}, UN Sustainable Development Goals, and r\frican Union 2063

Agenda. I)ivetse key stakeholders will be consulted during the development of the new progtammes in

line with C<>mmission oF University' I'lducation (CUII) guidelincs. A Qualiq' N{anagcment Svstem will be

implemented to design, offer and rcview academic and research programmes.
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2. Research, Innovation, Technology and Outreach

Nlama Ngina University Collegc realizes that advanced knorvledgc and practical application of Research,

Innovation, and Technology are key to achieving industrial and technokrgical development of any sociery.

In line with its N{otto of "Sbaping the F ture",l\{Nuc will aim to be a point of excellence and reference

that will help in shaping the new ftontiers in research and developmcnt with recognition both locally and

globally. The institution will strive to build a robust communiq' of researchers, enhance the research

capacitl,, provide global exposure to its staff and srudents, and establish murually bene[rcial linkages,

collaborat-ions and partnerships with national, regional and internatio nal orgatizatt<>ns. N{NLIC will also

endeavor to provide opportunities for outreach activities to the communiq'and beyond.

3. Institutional Capacity

a. Physical Infrastructure and Facilities

N{NUC is envisioned to be a state-of-art modem University College with eco and user-friendly

infrastructure and facilities. The Lrniversiry College being a newly establishcd insrirudon, this key prioriry

area is fundamental since it lays the overall infrastrucrural development that will effectively supports

teaching, research and innovation for the College bevond the five vear plan. Some o[the key strategies are

to implement the development as per the NINUC N{aster Plan, construct ruition block, laboratories,

completion of waste management system, potable water supply facilities, expansion of the perimeter wall,

build appropriate social, sports and recreational facilities for both staff and students. Other areas of

importance are library facilitv and strengthening the fleet and health management system facilities.

b. Fluman Resource Development

Although the University College is at its infancy, developing adequate, skilled and motivated human

resource is central to its accelerated growth. NINUC aims to recruit, develop and retain qualified staff of

the highest integdty and caliber, while conforming to internationally' set standards in order to execute and

deliver services effectivelv and efficiendy. Its growth and expansion will be guided by an establishment

plan and human resource development potcy to ensure highly effective and efficient delivery of serr.ices.

A conducive working environment will be maintained to attract and retain the best lecrurers and

researchers.
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c. Information Communication Technology

IC'l' is recognized as one of thc kc1' enabler for the institution in not onlv accelerating the instirutional

development but also for facilitating qualitf improvement in its operations and taining. f'he strategics

will include; policv development, establishment o[ critical connectivirv and infrastrucrure. NINUC wi]l aim

to acquirc state-of-the-art facilities for use in tcaching, learning, research and communitv outrcach as well

as in the library. ICT intcgrated management s)'stems for srudents and staff rccords 'rvill be continuously

adopted to enhance operations in all operations <>f the instirution. 'l'he instirution will embtacc new and

advanced technologl, that will propel it to bc a Full,v-flcdged IC'l -driven green instirution.

d. Corporate Govemance, Leadership and Management

ii. Student Management and Focus

NINU(I will aim at the holistic development of students through mental, spiritual, phvsical, social and

academic programs designed to cmpower them to become compctcnt, independcnt and teliable team

players in socicq'. 'fhis will be achievcd through provision o[ an enabling environment with the best

facilitics, ment(xs, and clubs that identifies and unlocks individual student's potential as rvell as exposes

and enlightens them to the outside world. NINLI(I will facilitate formation of a strucrured and functional

student leadership governancc body to provide senicc and leadcrship to other NINLIC students.

xxlll

i. Corporate Govemance

'l'he NIN UC effectiveness and cfficreng' rvill bc peggcd on thc abiliq' of the Univetsiw College

management to formulate and implement proper and rclevant policies and procedures. -fhe actualization

of these policies bv the managcmcnt is therefore crucial, and their consistent enfotcement is vital to the

effective deliverv of the MNLrC core mandate. NINUC thus aims to promote good govemance and

leadcrship stmcrures and systems that will create a culrure o[ a succcssful learning organization. 1'his

critical prioriry area forms the foundation that drives the Instirution's Vision and N1ission. f'he main focus

under this stratcgy during the planning period rvill includc policy and organizational development, and

best practices for enhanced scn'ice dclive4' and improved customer satisfaction, implcmentation of a

functional <lualitv management svstem and Frnancial risk management framervork and acquisition and

maintenance oI relevant IS() certifications.



iv. Marketing and Communication

As a voung instirution, MNUC aims to develop a recognizable corporate image and create high visibiJity

of IvINUC as a brand and an instirution of choice through active proiection o[its activities in the integtated

and different communication s]'stems.

v. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

To enhance visibility of the Universigv College in the communiw, N{NUC will organize and facilitate cvents

and community outreach activities that have dircct and posirive impact to the community. 'l'ogether with

collaborative partners, the CSR progiams will endeavor to walk with the communin' on arcas of thet

interest thus contributing towards promotion and well-being of the local communiq,.

Safety and Security of the University Collegevl

NINUC aims to put in place safeq' measures that conform to internationally set standards to ensure the

safety of the students, staf( and visitors to the institution. Some of the suategies will be safety training

courses to be conducted periodically by fue and safety marshals, disaster management as well as anti-

terrorism drills for all the staff and students

4. Financial Sustainability And Resource Mobilization

NINUC will strive to ensure prudent and sustainable utilization of resources and finances by mobilizing

and effectively managing resources to ensure financial stability and sustainability. However, given that the

University College will be operating within a limited budget from the exchequer, thc full realization of the

sftategic obiectives will largelv depend on the cxtensive/aggressive lobbying and goodwill of the

Government and solicitation of funding fr<>m dcvelopmeflt partners.
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iii. Leadership

IV{NUC believes in visionary Ieadership and a strong foundation that will outlive the founders of the

University College. By having a focused managemcnt team, the insrirution will aim to establish its name

by offering the very best student-focused programs and scrvices that bui]ds on the next line of leaders.

The instirution will also aim to create avenues that identi{,, promotes, and empowers staff members in

leadership positions and responsibilities.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

Introduction
'fhe statement oudincs thc kcv aspects of the Llniversitr,'s corpotate gol'ernancc ftamework. Corporate
governancc is thc process b,v which the Llniversih'is dtectcd, controllcd and held to account. It ptovides
thc structure through rvhich the stratcgic objcctives o[ thc Llnivcrsin' are set, and the mcans of attaining
them as wcll as monitoring performance. Oorporatc Clovernance dictates the engagemcnt betrveen the
Univcrsifi' Council, Scnate, Nlanagemcnt Board, Regulators and all Stakeholdets.
'fhe Universitl in its decision-making processes obsenes the highest ethical standards and benchmarks
on global best practices in compl-iancc rvith the applicable legal principlcs, its vision, mission, and core
values for sustainabiliq. of thc Universiq'.

I-he governing organs of the University are :

(i) The University Collegc Council;

@) 
'l'he University College Itlanagcmcnt Board

(u) 'Ihc Universiry Oollcgc r\cadcmic B<>ard

(D The University College Council
'Ihe Council is guided bv thc L1niversities Act 2012, Universiw (-ollegc Starutes, Nftvongozo (lode of
(]ovcrnance and Council Charter which defines the governance guidelines within which the Council exists
and opcrates. 'Ihey clear\, states thc respective roles, responsibilities and authorities of thc Council and its
(lommittecs.

Council Appointment and Composition
In accordance with the Universities Act No. 42 of 2012, clause 36 (1 and 1A) the University College
Council comprises of ten members appointed by the Cabinet Secretarl' for a period of three years and
who arc elgtble for rc-appointment f()r a further one term.
'Ihe membcrs are as follows:

I 'fhe Oharrperson
r Principal Secretary, IVinisqv fot thc time bcing rcsponsible for the Universiry Iiducation
. Principal Secretary, N{inistrv for the time being responsible for I;inance and The National'I'reasury
. Irive mcmbers appointed by the Cabinet Sccretary, Nlinistq' for the time being tesponsible for

Unive rsin [ducation

' 'fhe Vicc-(lhanccllor, Kcnratta Univcrsifi'rvho shall bc an cx -officio member
r 'l'he Principal, who shall be ex- ofltcio and thc C<>uncil Sectetan'

Council Diversity
The Nlama Ngina Universiq Oollege Council membcrs p()sscss a broad rangc of skills, expertise,
cxperiencc and knowledge essential to undertake the Universirl"s mandate. 'fhe ateas of expertise of the
current Council members include Leadcrship, Itlanagemcnt, Financc, Special Education, Informatjon
Science, Education r\dministration, S<>ciokrgl' and Law am()rlg othcrs.

Separation of Powers and Duties
'Ihe Chairman of (louncil's responsibilitics include the leadership and govcrnance oIthc Council, ensuring
its effectivcncss and setting its agcnda. 'l'hc l)rincipal's rolcs and rcsponsibilities include the dar'-to-dav
operation and managcment o[ thc Llniversin' College's business and overseeing the implemcntation of
stratcgics and policies approved bv the Council. -I'his is clcarlv stipulated in thc Ltniversitl' Act and the
Universitl Collcge Starutes.
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Powers and Functions of the Council
The powers and functions of the Council include:

1. Administer the property and funds of the Universiw College in a manner and for the purposes

which shall promote the interest of the Universirl College, horvevet, the Council shall not charge

or dispose of immovable property o[ the University Collegc except in accordance rvith the

procedutes laid down by the Govemment o[ Kenya;

2. Receive, on behalf of the Llniversiq, College, donations, endowments, gifts, grants, or other moneys

and make disbursements there from to the Universiry College or other bodies or persons;

3. Provide for the welfare of staff and students of the LTniversiw Oollege;

4. Enter into association with other Universities, University Colleges or other institutions o[ leaming,

whether within Kenya or otherwise, as the Council mav deem necessarl, and appropriate as

provided for in Section 29 of the Act;
5. Approve regulations governing the conduct and discipline of the students of the University College;

6. Approve regulations governing the conduct and discipline of the staff of the University College;

7 . Raise funds and secure Frnancial support for the Llniversitl' College;

8. Determine University College fees and other charges;

9. Establish scholarships, bursaries, and other arvards;

10. Approve the tetms and conditions of service and critcria for recruitment, appointment, and

promotion of staff;

1 1. Approve the regulations governing staff and student conduct

12. Approve academic affiliations and associations rvith other Universiry Colleges and institutions;

13. Establish its committees;

14. Establish Campuses, departments, faculties, schools, institutes, and anv other teaching facility;

15. Employ staff;

16. Approve the statutes of the Universiry' College and cause them to be published in the Kenya

Gazette;

17. Approve the policies of the Universitl' College;

18. Approve the budget;

19. Recommend for appointment o[ Principals and Depuq' Principals through a competirive process;

20. Confer after receir.ing a report from the Academic Board, the title of Emeritus Ptofessor;

21. Promote and make financial provisions and facilities for execution of the functions of the

University College;

22. Subject to the laid down govemment procedures, approvc for sale, purchase, exchange, lease, or

take on, lease movable and immovable property on behalf of the University College;

23. Subject to the laid down govemment procedures, to approve the borrowing of money on behalf

of the university; and for that purpose and subject to the Act, to mortgage or charge all or anv part

o[ the property unless the conditions of the property so held provide otherwise, and to give such

other security whether upon movable and immovable properry or otherwise as the Council may

deem fit;
24. To receive, on behalfof the Universiq' College, donations, endowments, gifts, development grants

or other moneys and make legitimate disbursements where [rom;
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25

26

21

2u

29

30

31

32

T'o approvc the constirution of thc Students Association and so far, as is teasonabll' practicable, t<>

cnsurc that the Srudents' r\ssociation ()pcratcs in a fti.r and democratic manner;
'I'o approvc the opcning and f or closing of the Universiq, Oollcge's bank account(s) for the funds

of thc Universiqv Collegc;

Ilnsure that a proper managemcnt structurc is in place and make sure that thc strucrure functions

to maintain corporatc integrin', reputation, and responsibilin';

Nlonitor and evaluate the implcmentation of policics, strategics, and management plans of the

Llniversity College;

Receivc and evaluate reports on managcment and governance of the University as provided for by

various legislations and the Statutcs for effective monitoring and cvaluation;

Constantly review the viabilitl and financial sustainability of thc Universiry College and shall do so

once cvell' \'eaf;

Ilnsure that the Universiry Collcge compl-ies with all the relevant laws, regulations, governancc

practices, accounting, and auditing standards;

Perform such other duties as may be containcd in the Starutes and have such othet powers as

contained in the .,\ct;

IUay delegate any of its powers or responsibilities to Committees as shall be deemed necessary;

NIay cmpowcr such Committecs act joindl' with anv committee appointed bv Academic Board

provided that Council shall not delegate to a Committec the power to approve without further

refercnce to the Council;

Undcrtake any othcr responsibiliqv that shaU bc provided fot by the Act, Legal Notice, Legislation

and (]ovemment Circulars.

.)-)

31

35

Meetings of the Council
Whilc thc (louncil is rcsponsiblc fr>r its agenda, it is thc rcsponsibilin' of thc (lhairpcrsr>n

I)rincipal t() c()mc up rvith the .\gcnda f<rr thc (louncil mcctings.
and thc

'l'he Council r\lmanac rvhich is thc calcndar o[ meetings for the Iiinancial Year 2021 /2022 was dcvelopcd
following thc council appointment and communicatcd to all Council mcmbers. 'I'he agcnda and supporung
papers were distributed in advance to all members of the (iouncil and its Committcc's.

-I'he meetings of the Council wcrc hcld as per the r\lmanac r in the Univcrsity Collcge Principal's OfFrce

or an\, ()ther premises as agreed upon bl thc (louncil and after obtaining permission from the lrlinistn'of
Iiducation.

,,\t all meetings of the Council, a quonrm is five for the main Council meetings and three for the Council
Committees' meetings.

N?here conscnsus is not achievcd, decisions of thc (louncil mav be by' a simple majority vote of those
present and voting, provided that the Chairpcrson of the (louncil shall have a casting vote in case of an

equaliry of votes.
The Chairperson may at anr- time call a meeting of the (l<>uncil rvithin nvenry'' eight (28) days of
receiving request for that purpose addressed to him and signed by at least a half of the membetship of
Council.
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Councils' Effectiveness
In order to ensure that the Council membcrs are effective in their conuibution to the management of the
Universiry, it is important that they develop good understanding of the University College and its
operations.

Council members undenvent an induction and training to enable them to fulfill their responsibilides

Evaluation
The Council has put in place evaluation system to ensure that the Council achieves its objective. Council
evaluation is scheduled to take place in the first quarter of the Financial Year 2022 /2023.

Council Committees
There are four committees of the Council whose chairpersons' reports to the main Council and assists rn

executing the mandate of the Council and by extension, the University.
1) Council Committees

The following are the committees of Council
1. Administration, Finance, and Planning Committee

2. Audit, fusk and Compliance Committee

3. Academic, Research and Srudent A ffairs Committee

4. Human Resource Committee
n il irT

of Refe rcnce

1. Administration, Finance and Planning Committee

a)

1.

2.

-).

4.

Membership

Two members of Council one of whom shall be the Chairperson;

Principal Secretaq' for the time being responsible for LInir.ersiry Education;

Cabinet Secretary for the time being responsible for Finance;

Principal- Secretary

Terms of Reference

Receive, consider, and recommend for Council approval, annual estimates of revenue and

expenditure

Oversee compliance of budgetary allocation as approved within its annual budgets

Genetate and receive proposals for subscription, donations, and bequest for onward

transmission to Council for consideration

Oversee proper recording of accounts o[ the income, expendirure and assets o[ the

University College and submission of Frnancial reports as by law required

Oversee proper vesting of all immovable property, shares, funds, and securities in the

name of the University College

Receive and consider for onward transmission to Council proposal for investing University

College funds subject to legal requirements

b)

b

L

,1

d
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f.



MAMA NGINA UNIVERSITY COLLEGE
Annual Report and Financial Statements
For Ten Months Period Ended 30tt' June 2022

l-r

l.

k

l.

Receivc for consideration and onward transmission to Council reports on management

and administration of Universitv College:

l. land and burldings;

2. machinen' and equipment;

3. funds;

4. Vehicles.

Receive and consider proposals for Univcrsity Collcge fees and any other charges and

recommend to the council for considcration and approval.

Receive recommendation for onward transmission to Council on scholarships, bursaries,

and other awards.

Receive proposals on opportunities for investments, for ptocessing and onward

transmission to council for consideration and approval.

Rcceive and consider proposals on acquisition o[ fi-red asscts and recommend to Council

for appropriate action.

Receive reports on performance o[ University College investments and submit proposals

for (-ouncil consideration.

Receive, consider, and submit for Council approval the annual Procutement PIan of the

Universiq' Collcge.

Recommend f<rr Council approval the sale, purchase, exchange, lease, or take on of
movable and immovable properw.

Subject to the laid down government procedures, to recommend fot Council approval:

i. f'he borrowing of monev on bchalf of the Universigv College.

ii. IUortgaging or charging all or any part of movable and immovable property.

Receivc for consideration and recommendation to (louncil opening, andf or closing of
bank account(s) for the funds of the Universitv College;

Reccive, consider, and make recommendation to Counci-l on reports of implementation of
the Llniversit)' College Nlaster Plan bi-annually.

Receivc, consider, and submit for Council approval proposals on llew proiects.

Review the performance of all ongoing projects and submit reports to Council on a

quarterly basis.

1.o consider and recommend to the (louncil for approval and adoption:

1. 'I'he vision, core values and the strategic dtection of thc University College;

2. Univetsiq' College ()rganogram;

3. I'he performance contract reports;

4. The changes to govemance framework (-Iniversities Act, Charter, Statutes

among others);

5. ()versees thc devclopment, revicw, and implemcntation of the University College

Strategic Plan in conformity' with the medium-term fiscal framework and policy

objectives;

6. Benchmark and promote global best Corporate Governance practices.

f'ransact an)' other business as directed by Council

m

n.

()

P

(l

r

S

t

u
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2. Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee

a) Membership
i) Two Indepcndent members of Council one of whom shall be the Chairperson. One

of the members should be well-versed in financial mattcrs;

ii) Principal Secretary for the time being responsible for Universiry llducation;
in) Cabinet Secretary for the time being responsible for Finance

i") Intemal Auditor rvho shall bc the secretary.

b) Terms of Reference

i) Receive, review, and recommend intemal control mechanisms towards imptoving

efficiency, effectiveness, transparency and accountabilitl';

ii) Receive and discuss internal and external audit reports and make recommendations

to Council;

lii) Review and oversee the setdement and implementation of recommendations from
The Public Accounts and Public Investments Committees ("AC/PIC) Senate and relevant

committees of Padiament

i") Review and regularly report to Council on the effectiveness and efficiency of the

Internal audit function;

r) Review N{anagement procedures and make proposals to Council for mainsueaming

Ot fusk Nlanagement, Controls and Govcrnance;

"i) Review and submit for Council approval the audit and dsk management committee

and internal audit department Legal Notices, and the intemal audit annual work plans;

"ii) Review and submit proposals to Council on improvement of efficiency and

effectiveness of N{anagement s}'stems, including and not limitcd to high-risk areas such as

public finance, human resource, academic programs, and general internal conEols;

.'iii) Review and submit a report to Council on compliance with policies, larvs,

regulations, procedures, plans, and ethics;

r-x) Initiate special audit/investigation on any allegations, concems and complaints

regatding corruption, lack of accountabiJiq' and transparenc)';

x) Receive, consider, and submit to Council progaess reports flrom the head o[ internal

audit unit including:

1. Work performed compared with rvork planned;

2. Kef issues emerging from internal audit work done;

3. Starus of management response to audit frndings and recommendations;

4. Changes to the annual work plan;

5. r\ny other relevant audit reports.

xi) Resolve any difhculties or unjustified restrictions or limitations on the scope of
Internal audit work.
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t
3. Academic, Research and Student Affairs Committee

Membership
'I'wo members of Council one of rvhom shall be the Chairperson;

Principal Secretary for the time being responsible For Universiq' Education;

Cabinet Secretaq' for thc time being responsible for Finance;

Principal- Secretarr'

a)

i)

ii)

in)

i")

b) Terms of Reference

1) Receive, consider, and recommend for approval regulations governing

Srudents and staffl conduct and discipline;

n) Receive, considcr and f or recommcnd proposal for affiliations, Iinkages,

Partnerships and associations and report to the council for ratification;

iii) 'Io receive, veri$ and seal certificates before they are issued to graduands;

n) Receive and considet tcports from Academic Board and make

recommendations to (louncil on Academic Nlatters including:

1. Curriculum and academic standards of an1' course of study;

2. 'Ihe establishment, harmonizati<>n or abolition of Schools, Institutes, Units,

Departments, and Ocntcrs;

3. Academic affiliati<>ns, linkages, partnerships, and associations;

4. Promotion of rcsearch and innovation rvork in the University College and

dissemination of the 6ndings;

5. Qualiw standards and assurance of education, training, research, and

innovauon;

6. Regulations for thc eligibiJitl' of persons for admission t() a course of srud,v;

1. Regulations [<rr the standard of proFrciencv to be gaincd in each examination

for a degree, diploma, ccrtificate, or other award of the universiF;

8. 'Ihe Constitution oI the Students' r\ssociation. Policies, regulations, strategies,

plans, and standards governing ,\cademic, Research and students' matters;

9. Reports from Academic Board on new/revised programmes, student's

admissions, and graduation for adoption;

10. l'he -r\cademic Boatd nomination (s) for the Honoris Causa degree.

11. Receive and consider rcports on students' welfare;

v) Receive and consider the constirution of an ,\lumni Association and receive reports

on thcir proposals and recommcndations:

vi) f'ransact any othcr business as directed by Oouncil.

xxx I



MAMA NGINA UNIVERSITY COLLEGE
Annual Report and Financial Statements
For Ten Months Period Ended 30tt' June 2022

4. Human Resources Committee

a) Membership

Two members of Council onc of whom shall bc the Chairperson;

Cabinet Secretary for the t-ime being responsible for Iihance;
Principal Secretary for the time being responsible for Universiq' Education;

Thc principal. (Secretarl ):

b) Terms of Reference

Consider and recommend to Council for approval and adoption of:

1 . Terms and conditions of service of all staff members;

2. Policies pertaining to staff benefits appointment, promotion, appraisal, and discipline;

3. Regulations goveming staff conduct;

4. Reports on establishment of staff, Staff development plan and University' staff welfare;

5. The staff succession plan and Schemes of Sen'icc.;

6. Reports from the Appointments and Promotions, Senior Board and Junior Staff
Disciplinary Board;

1. Oversee the conduct o[ inten'iews for emplovment, appointment, and promotion of
members of faculty and staff from gradc 13 and submit reports to council;

8. Consider and recommend for approval terms and conditions o[ sen'ice, criteria for
recruitment, appointment, and promotion of staffi

9. Oversee the development and implementation of a Human Resoutce strategy;

10. Adjudicate on staff and srudent disciplinary appeals.

Council Remuneration
The University College Non-Exccutive Council N{embers are paid a sitting allowance for every meeting
attended. 'Ihey are not eligible for pension scheme membership. Horvever the Chairman of Council
receives honoraria on a monthly basis as indicated in Note 10 of the fjinancial Statements.

Council allowances are based on approved rates and guidance provided in Government Circulars

Conflict of Interest
-l'he Council members are obligated to fully disclose t() the Council anv real or potenrial conflict of interest,
which comes to any Council member's attention, whether dircct or indircct. At an1' fflsstirg the Council
members are expected to make a declaration o[ anf intercst the] may have in the business under
discussion. In the financial 1'ear under review, there wcre no transactions with any conflict of interest of
the Council members or their related parties.

Code of Conduct and Ethics
-fhe Liniversity has a code o[ conduct and ethics polic,v that binds the Council membets, management
and employees. When joining the Univcrsiry, eveq' employce is provided with a copv of the code o[
conduct and ethics policv and must commit to abide bf its requirements as part of the employment
cofltract with the Universin'.

xxxlt



Risk Management and Intemal Controls
-l'hc Univcrsity College Council is responsible for the L'niversin (-ollegc system o[ risk management and
internal contr()I, rvhich is desrgned to identifr,ing potential risks in advance, analyzing them and taking
precautionarv stcps to rcduce/curb thc nsk.

'I'he Council has delegated responsibiliE' fot the ongr>ing monitoring of thc cffectir.eness of this system

to thc Audit, fusk and Compliance Committee. I)ctails in relati<>n to this Committee's work in this tegard
are set out in thc Llniversiq' College Statutcs.
'Ihe Principal is rcsponsible for imple menting the s]'stem, including a svstem o[ internal controls and
audits, to identi$' and managc risks that arc matcrial t<> the Unir.ersin, Oollege Independent review of the
risk managcment framervork is carricd out through the Universiq' Oollcge Intcmal Audit function that
carries out risk bascd internal audit on regular basis.

-l'he Universitl''s Key fusks include;
1. Liquidiq'tusk
2. ()peration fusk
3. (lommercial Risk
4. Infrastructure Risk

Compliance
-l'he Council operates in a manner reflecting the Llnivcrsitv Collegc's values and in accordance with the

Corporate Guidance, the Universitics Act, and thc Univcrsiq' Collcgc Starutes, (louncil Charter,
N{rvongozo and all other applicablc regulations.
The Council is committed to ensuring that it complies with all applicablc laws and regulations.

Govemance Audit
'I'he Universigv College did not conduct govemance audit this vcar because the Llniversity College Council
was appointed on 3'd Decemb er,2021.

Stakeholders
Stakeholders ma1'be categorized, on thc basis of location, into internal and extcrnal. Intcrnal stakeholders
include thosc insidc the Lrniversin' Collcge. 'Ihcsc includc studcnts and cmployces. On the other hand,
cxtcrnal stakeholdcrs are based outside the Universin', but have implications for sun'ival of the Liniversitv.
'fhese include customers, suppliers, government agcncies, dcvekrpment partners, local communities,

alumni, external examincrs and trade unions.

Going Concem
The Council is committcd to ensuring that the Universitv Collegc has ade<1uate resources to continue in
operational existence for the forcseeablc furure. For this reasofl, they continuc to adopt the going concem
basis in preparing thc financial statements.

Conclusion
The Council recognizcs that practices and procedurcs can always be improved. r\ccordinglv, the corporate
govemance framework o[ the Universiw is kept under revrerv to take account of changing standards and
rcgulations.
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S/N

1

2

3

4

Type of the Meeting

Full Council

Human Resources Committee

Audit, fusk and Compliance Committec

Administration, Finance and planning Committee

Number of
Meetings
-)

1

1

1

(ii) The Univetsity College Management Boatd.

Pursuant to Section 14(1) of the Legal Notice, there shall be a Univetsitv College Management Board

which shall assist in the day-to-day management of the Universitl' College.

Membership
e The principal;

r The Depury Pdncipal

o Regrstrar Academic and Students Affairs;

o Finance Officer;
o Regrstrar Planning, N{anagement and Administrauon

o Human Resources Officer

Roles and Responsibilities of the Board
The College Management Board shall;

o Provide advisory support to the Principal;

o Encourage the rationalization and efficiency of the universiq College services;

r Co-ordinate and control the development, planning, management and administration of the

Universiq' College and its resources;

r Submit proposals to the universiq' College Council on annual budgets, development priorities,

staff development plans, terms and conditions of service, fund raising strategies, students

welfare, public relation policies, academic partnership and linkages;

o Authorize the initiation or defend of legal proceedings;

o Propose to the Council rules and regulations for the administration of University College;

e Propose establishment of University Collcge charges and fees; and

e Petform any other duties assigned.

xxx lv
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(iiD The University College Academic Board.

'l'herc shall be an r\cademic Board which shall bc rcsponsible for acadcmic matters

Membership
The membership of the Academic Board shall include-

o The principal;

o The De puty Principals;

o The Deans of Schools

o The Directors of Instirutes, Ce nters and other academic units;

r The Chairpersons o[ te aching l)epartments;

o University College Libraian;
r The Professors of the universitl College;

r Registrar r\cademic and Students Affairs;

o Legal ()fficet;

o Finance Officer;

o The Dean of Srudents

o One representative o[ each board of the Faculties, Instirutes and Schools appointed by the

respective boards from amongst its members;

o Two members elected by the Students Organization of l\lama Ngina University College who shall

however not be entided to attend deliberations of the academic Board on matters which are

considered by the Chairperson of the Academic Board to be confidential, ot which relate to

examinations, the general discipline of students, and other telated matters.

f'he Academic Board may admit some members as and rvhen necessary

Responsibilities of Academic Board
r f'he responsibilitics o[ thc Academic Board shall be as oudined in Section 13(3) of thc Legal

Notice.
t Recommending t<> the Council the cstablishment, or abolition or harmonization of Faculties,

Schools, Instirutes, Units, l)epartments, and centers.
. In consultation with the Senate, setting the dates of the academic vear and determining the

schedule of academic programmes.
r In Consultation with the Senate, approving all svllabi, making regulations govcming methods of

assessing and examining academic performance of students, and ptoposing tegulations regarding

eligrbiliry of persons for admrssion to a coursc of study.
'fhc r\cademic Board mav subject to random rcvicw, assess the cntire quatfication process for award

of Degrce, Diplomas and Certiltcates with the aim of identifving flarvs, upon rvhich thel' shall

recommend to Scnate and thereafter to Council for rvithdrarval and cancellation of degrees,

diplomas, and certificate.
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The N{anagement discussion and analysis, provides an ovcn'ierv o[ thc University College's financial
activities for the fiscal year ended 30'h June 2022. Since this information is designcd to focus on thc curerit
year's activities, resulting changcs, and currently' known facts, it should be read in conjunction with the
Universiw's financial statements and Notes to the Financial Statcments following this section.

A. University Performance

In the year 2021 /2022 the Universin' received IGhs 60,266,789 Government (;rants, Kshs 913,450
Tuition and other fees and Kshs. 3,000 ftom othcr incomes.

Income for the year 2022

xxxvt
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Universi$' Sources of Funds
1. Govemment Grants - Recurrent and Development
2. Internally generated funds- -l'uirion and other income generadng activities.

a Government Grants r Tuition & Other Fees !Other lncome
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANAIYSIS

University Expenditute

Universitl' Iixpcnditures are composcd of Personnel I,)moluments, Opcrations and Nlaintenancc

'Ihe Universitl' College's expendirurc f<rr thc year 2021 /2022 amounted to Kshs 21,446,163,
under thc two categories as follows;

Particulars
1 . I)crsonncl I',m<>luments
2. ()pcrzrtit>n and Nlaintcnancc

Expenditures for the year 2022

Amount in Kshs
17 ,109 ,314=
,t,337,3ti9=

. 1, Personnel Emoluments . 2. Operation and Maintenance

xxxvl I
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Conclusion:

ltre Universiry* College received the flust capitation in the month o[ February 2022 after starting its
operation at the College in January 2022, prevrous capitation were being received by Kenyatta University
and all operation and management was being handled by Kenyatta University.

The capitation received was for five months (Fcbruary - June 2022) whtch catcted for personnel
Emoluments from February 2022 ar,d, operation and maintcnance cxpenses from April 2022 rvhich wcre
being met bv Kenyatta Lrniversin, thus the lorv reported level o[ operation expenses of KShs.4, 337,389
as compared with Petsonnel Emolumcnts of KShs.1 7, ,lO9 

,37 4.

The management is optimistic that our revenues will increase in the coming financial year in particular
Tuition and other fees as we anticipate a higher student enrollment in the next intake.

B. University College's Compliance with Statutory Requitements
'l'hc Llniversiq, Collcgc has complicd with statutoq' re<luiremcnt and havc remittcd all pavroll statut()rv
dcductions in the financial year 2021 /2022.

C. Key Projects and Investment Decisions the University is Planning/Implementing

D. Major Risks facing the University

1'he Universiq' has identihed the following Key Risks;

1. Liquidity risk -f'he universi$' college has risk to meet its financial obligation rvhen thev fall

due, this is due to the low amount of capitation from the govcrnmeflt allocated to thc

Universin'.

2. Operation risk -The inabilin' o[ the univcrsin' college to grow duc to the pending
compensation of the land owncrs for thc universin' collcgc expansion.

I .\bluttrn lllock .luh.. 2{)22 Scptcmbcr,2022 .\pprovel Strgc .1.5 \l Nrl ( )ngoing

\pproval Stagc 5.5 \l ( )ngotng

'l cmporan'

Restaurant Scptcmbcr,2022

Purchrsc of l'lRl) June,2025 \pprovrl Strgc 2r)i\ I ( )ngotng

+ \lotor Ychiclcs .lulr,2()21 Scptcmbcr,2022 \pproval Sragc 1.1\l \lt ( )ngotng

5 lirrnorr IlLrck Jul1, 2022 Junc,2025 \pprovel St.rge 620\l \II ( )ngorng
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3. Commercial Risk-the universirv college has cxperienccd a low number of srudcnts

cnrolment from thc government and also self-sponsored students.

4. Inftastructural risk -the universih'does not havc adequate facilitics due to lack o[
funds from the government.

E. Material Arrears in Statutory/Financial Obligations
-l'he Universin' Oollegc has no matcrial arrcars in staruto4'/financial obligation f<rr thc financial v

2021/2022.

enough

l

i

er
l

l

i
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ENVIRONMENTAL AND SUSTAINABILITY REPORTING

I!{NUC exists to ransform lives. 'I'his is our purpose; the drir"ing florce behind everything we do.

It's what g-rides us to delir.er our strateg)', putdng the stakeholders first, in addressing common

prioriry challenges in intellectual, scholarly, research and innovation services in the region and the

world and also improving operational excellence. Below is an oudine of the organization's policies

and activities that promote sustainabiliq'.

i) Sustainability strategy and ptofile

N{NUC will strive to eflsure prudent and sustainable utilization of resources and finances by

mobiJizing and effectivell' managing resources to ensure Frnancial stability and sustainability.

However, given that the Llniversity College is operating within a limited budget flrom the

exchequer, the full reabzatton of the strategic ob jectives will largely depend on the

extensive/aggressive lobbying and goodwill of the Govemment and solicitation of funding from

development partners.

ii) Environmental performance

MNUC is ahead o[ the cun e when it comes to its surroundings. Our students have an

opportunity to pursue their studies in a tranqui-I, green and scenic environment that we intend on

maintaining and growing for ourselves and the communities around us. Additionally, we ate

fortunate that the area is very productive suitable for many agricultural-related economic activities.

When it comes to our water supply, the University College is connected to Garundu Water and

has a borehole. Plans are underway to connect IUNUC to the Gatufldu Water and Sewage line to

ensure our waste disposal is done in a manner that is environmentally sound and responsible.

To ensure environmental consen'ation, ITINUC has had and will continue to have an annual tree

planting day targeting the universitl and surrounding areas.'Ihe University College has the plan

of participating in the rehabilitat-ion of the catchm ent 
^tea 

where the Gatundu water comes from.

This will be in collaboration with our stakeholders and othet identified like-minded parties working

towards the govemment dtective of a minimum 109/o tree cover nationwide.
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iii) Employee welfare
-I'hc Univcrsity College has developed a Human Resource N{anual making references to many

rclcvant documents, cnsuring it is in line rvith Kenya Constitution 2010, Labour laws and other

laws governing good Labour practices and Industrial Rclations in thc count4' and internationally

'l'hrough the manual, the University' Collcgc has put in placc recruitment procedure that will ensure

no job applicant receives less favorable treatmeflt than another on the grounds of disabiJ.ity,

gender, and race, rcligion, bclief, and age, marital starus, among others or a particular group as

envisaged in the constituti<>n.

'fhc manual takes cognizance of thc provision of Arucles 232 and 10 of thc Constitution by

assuring equal emplovment opportuniq' and a workplace rvhcrc all employees, extemal

stakeholdets and customers arc $cated in a profcssional and n<>n-discriminatorl' manner. The

Univcrsitv College has policics in place that pror.ides for safc, effective and working conditions.

irr) Market place practices

NINUC cndeav<>rs to complv rvith all laid down rule and regulations in its opetations and

dealings with all stakeholdcrs.

a) Responsible competition ptactice.

'l'hc Lrniversity College has developed robust Procurcment standard operating procedures

that are in line with the Public Procutement and Disposable r\ct 2015 and their subsequent

regulations Public Procurement And Disposal Regulations (2020) .The PPDA 2015 takes

cognizance o[ fairness, equitable, cost effective, competitive and transparencf in the

procurement process. The Universitv College policies ensures all its suppliers ate accorded

fairness as cnshrincd in the act and the consnruuon.

1'hrough the manual, the Universin' College has put in placc mechanism on business

allocation to the prefercnce as per Public Procurcment and Disposal r\ct 2015; whereby

30920 of its procurement is grvcn to womcn, Youth and People rvith Disabiliry. This ensures

fair competition amongst the resen'ed group.

b) Responsible Supply chain and supplier relations

'I'hc Nlanual takcs cognizance of the supplier c()ntract implemcntation processes that are

in line rvith the agreements signed bctween thc entity and vendors. In addition the

Univcrsity College has put a raft of policies in timelv pavment of suppliers after receipt of
goods or sen'ices and verification. 'Ihis has ensuted murual business to thrive and resolve

the emanating issucs in a timc\' and within the set policies.

xli



MAMA NGINA UNIVERSITY COLLEGE
Annual Report and Financial Statements
For Ten Months Period Ended 30th June 2022

c) Responsible marketing and advertisement

N{NUC have and rvill continue to adhere to e thical marke ting practices, this has been done

by ensuring that the College give full disclosurc of courses approved and are on offer.

d) Product stewardship

Being producers of human capital I\INUC have a robust tcam of scholars rvho carry out

research on market needs and rer.iew our programs to suit the market requrrements.

t) Corporate Social Responsibility / Community Engagements

N{NUC is embedded in the promotion and well-being of the local communiq', as such, it aims to

continue organizing and facilitating events that have a direct impact on the community, while being

direcdy involved in the affairs that concem and affect sociery'. The IIINUC program endeavors to walk

with the communitl, and identi$, areas of need that, together with the collaborative partners and the

input and assistance of the MNUC community, we can provide solutions to.

The university college envisions to:

^. Create opportunities for staff and students to eflgage in communirl' outreach and CSR activities

through:

i) Engaging in community outreach and CSR activities.

ii) Participating in community outreach and CSR actir.ities.

in) Promoting preventive health care to the neighboring community.

,") Creating an enabling envfuonment to enhance outreach to communities through sharing and

uptake of reseatch findings.

v) Utili"ilg N{NUC gtounds for important initiatives.

b. Develop partnerships for community outreach and CSR activities that benefit both the

communiq'and N{NUC.

Th ll I f R

1 . Philanthropy: Extension and Outreach initiated and funded bv NINUC communitv outreach fund.

It involves making donations in form of products, moncy and services to social causes and

nonprofits to benefit charities and local community programs. Some examples includc r.isits to

children's homes, food donations, book donations to local schools, medical camps, etc.
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2. Conservation efforts: NINUC is fortunate to be located in a dominandlr green environment. It is

our intention to maintain and grorv our surroundings in support of the government's directive to

grow our tree cover to a minimum of 109b countrywide to manage the challenges of climatc

change. 'l'his will be done through an annual trce planting cxcrcise and partnering with like-minded

organizations to extend thc trec c()vcrage in areas dcvoid of them.

3. Volunteering: N{NUC promotes opporrunitics for srudents and staff to engage in communiry*

sen'ice without expecting an) monetaq rerums. 'Ihis will include activities such as charitl walks,

clean-up exercises, visits to childrcn's homes, visits to thc eldcrly, ctc.

4. Peace and human rights initiatives: 'l'his will rnclude activities, such as peace campaigns, that

are conducted by the NINUC communiq' in partnership with other organizations to promote

peace and human rights.

5. Education and training- N{NLIC cnvision to offcr mentorship and educat-ion support for the

communities and schools in thc krcality.

CSR Activities

MNUC CSR activiucs are determined b1'the strategic plan of the Llnivcrsiry Collegc and the Government's

Performance Contracts to the Universirv.

Achicvcments of hc CS R zrctrvrtr (:S

N{NUC being a new University College has delir.ered extensivel,v in her CSR expectations. The following

have been achievements in the last year of the running of N{NUC.

a. Breast and cervical cancer awareness and screening medical camp.

b. 'Iraining on public procurement.

c. Education on succession and investment.

d. 'Ihe da1' of the r\frican child celebration and child protecrion education.

e. -Iree planting event.

MNUC Office of Student ,,\ ffairs and ()utreach in collaborarion with the Public Relations office, and

other univcrsiry* offices, have focused the CSR actir.'ities on cnhancing social, economic, and environment

aspects of communiq' life reatzing the following benefits:

i) Generation o[ positivc publiciw and reputauon.

ii) Increased patronagc and consumer appeal.

in) Strong client and communiq' relations.

i") 'l'riple bottom line effect torvards people, planet and revenuc.
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REPORT OF THE COUNCIL

The council submit their report together with the financial statements for the year ended June 30,2022,

which show the state of lrlama Ngina University College i' affairs.

i) Principal activities

The principal activities of Mama Ngina University College are to provide leadership to the

university community as the university college provide quality. and relevant education, training,

reseatch and outreach.

ii) Results

The results of N{ama Ngina University College for the year ended June 30,2022, are set out on

page 1 - 18

iii) Council

The members of the Council who served during the ye^r 
^rc 

shown on page ix - xii

i") Auditots

The Auditor General is responsible for the statutoq, audit of Nlama Ngina Universiry College in

accordance with Article 229 of the Constitution of Kenr.a and thc Public .r\udit ,,\ct 2015

By Order of the Board

Name: Prof. -famcs B. Kung'u, Ph.D. Signature:

Secretary to the Council

Date: f(lryt ry
Ir

.l
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STATEMENT OF COI.]NCIL MEMBERS RESPONSIBILITIES

Scction 81 of the Public Finance Nlanagement t\ct, 2072, section 15 of thc Statc corporation Act and
scction 47 of thc Univcrsity Act,2012,, require that the (louncil preparcs Frnancial statements in respect of
thc Univctsin' College, which give a true and fair rierv o[ the state of affairs of thc Universin College at
the end of the financial year and thc operating results of thc L1niversiq' College for that ycar. The Council
is also required to eflsurc that the Universin' Collcge kccps proper accounting records which disclose with
rcasonable accuracy the financial position of thc Univcrsiq, Oollegc and is responsible for safeguarding
thc asscts o[ thc University Oollege.

'lhc Council is responsiblc for the preparation and prcsentati<>n of the University College's financial
statements, rvhich gt'c a true and fair vierv of thc state o[ affats of the Lrniversin' College for and as at thc
cnd of thc financial year endcd on 

-f 
une 30,2022.'fhis rcsponsibil-iq' includcs: (i) Nlaintaining adcquatc

Frnancial management arrangcments and cnsuring that thesc continuc to bc effective throughout the
rcporting period; (ii) I\Iaintaining proper accounting tccords, rvhich disclose rvith rcasonable accuracy at
anv timc the financial position of thc Universiw Oollegc ; (iii) Dcsigning, implementing and maintaining
intemal c<>ntrols relevant to the prcparatron and lair prescntation of thc hnancial statcments, and ensuring
that they are frce from material misstatemcnts, whcthcr due to crror or fraud; (iv) Safcguarding the assets

of the Lrniversin' Collcge; (v) Selccting and applf ing appropriate accounung policies; and (r'i) N{aking
accounting estimates that arc reasonable in the circumstances.

thc Univcrsiq, Oollegc Council is committcd to have thc Universiry College bc and rcmain a going concem
for at least thc next trvclve months from thc date o[ this statemcnt.

Approval of the financial statements

'I'hc Llnivcrsiq, Oollcgc's financial statements werc approvcd by the Board and signed on its behalf by

Prof. James B. Kung'u, Ph.D.

PRINCIPAL

Dr. D d A. Ogindc

xlv

-Ihc Council accept rcsponsibil-ih' fot thc Uruvcrsih' Oollegc's hnancial statemcnts, which have becn
prcpared using appropriate accounting policies supportcd bv reasonable and prudent )udgements and
cstimatcs, in conformin' with Intemational Public Scctor ,\ccounung Standards (IPS;\S) Accrual, and in thc
manner requircd bv thc University Act, 2012. ^f\c Council is of the opinion that the Univcrsity Collegc's
fnancial statements gi'r'e a truc and fair vicrv of thc state of L'niversin' Collcge's ttansacdons during the
financial year cnded.func 30, 2022, and of the Unir.ersin' Collcge's financial pr>sition as at that date. 'lhe
(louncil further confrm the complctcness o[the accounting records maintained for the Universin' College,
rvhich have been relicd upon in the preparation of thc L'niversi$' Collcge's financial statemcnts as rvell as

thc adequacy of the svstems o[ intemal financial c()ntrol.

\
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REPUBLIC OF KENYA

OFFICE OF THE AUOITOR-GENERAL

E nhancin g A cc ount a b il i t.v

HEADQUARTERS

Anniversary Towers
Monrovia Street

P.O. Box 3oo84-ooloo
NAIROBI

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR.GENERAL ON MAMA NGINA UNIVERSIW COLLEGE
FOR THE TEN MONTHS PERIOD ENDED 30 JUNE,2022

PREAMBLE

I draw your attention to the contents of my report which is in three parts:

A. Report on the Financial Statements that considers whether the financial statements
are fairly presented in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework,
accounting standards and the relevant laws and regulations that have a direct effect
on the financial statements.

B. Report on Lawfulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources which considers
compliance with applicable laws, regulations, policies, gazette notices, circulars,
guidelines and manuals and whether public resources are applied in a prudent,
efficient, economic, transparent and accountable manner to ensure Government
achieves value for money and that such funds are applied for the intended purpose.

C. Report on Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and Governance
which considers how the entity has instituted checks and balances to guide internal
operations. This responds to the effectiveness of the governance structure, the risk
management environment and the internal controls, developed and implemented by
those charged with governance for orderly, efficient and effective operations of the
entity.

An unmodified opinion does not necessarily mean that an entity has complied with all
relevant laws and regulations and that its internal controls, risk management and
governance systems are properly designed and were working effectively in the financial
year under review.

The three parts of the report are aimed at addressing the statutory roles and
responsibilities of the Auditor-General as provided by Article 229 of the Constitution and
the Public Audit Act, 2015. The three parts of the report, when read together constitute
the report of the Auditor-General.

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Opinion

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of Mama Ngina University College
set out on pages 1 to 19, which comprise the statement of financial position as at
30 June, 2022, and the statement of financial performance, statement of changes in net
assets, statement of cash flows and statement of comparison of budget and actual

Report of the Auditor-Generol on Moma Ngina University College for the ten monlhs period ended 30 June, 2022
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t
amounts for the ten months period then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information in accordance with the provisions of Article 229
of the Constitution of Kenya and Section 35 of the Public Audit Act, 2015. I have obtained
allthe information and explanations which, to the best of my knowledge and belief, were
necessary for the purpose of the audit.

ln my opinion, the financial statements present faidy, in all material respects, the financial
position of Mama Ngina University College as at 30 June, 2022, and of its financial
performance and its cash flows for the ten months period then ended, in accordance with
lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual Basis) and comply with the
Public Finance Management Act, 2012 and Universities Act, 2012.

Basis for Opinion

The audit was conducted in accordance with lnternational Standards of Supreme Audit
lnstitutions (lSSA|s). I am independent of the Mama Ngina University College (MNUC)
Management in accordance with ISSAI 130 on Code of Ethics. I have fulfilled other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the ISSAI and in accordance with other ethical
requirements applicable to performing audit of financial statements in Kenya. I believe
that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
my opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

Budgetary Control and Performance

Mama Ngina University College (MNUC) was established through a Gazette Notice
No.193 by the Ministry of Education on 17 September,2021 as a constituent college of
Kenyatta University. The first MNUC Council was appointed on 03 December, 2021
through Gazette Notice No.13129. The first half of the financial year, financial
management of MNUC was undertaken by Kenyatta University. The budgeted revenue
for the year under review amounted to Kshs.148,356,768 while the actual revenue
realized for the ten months of operation was Kshs.61,183,239. ln addition, the budgeted
expenditure for the year was Kshs.148,356,768 while the actual expenditure amounted
to Kshs.2't ,446,763.

My opinion is not qualified with respect to this matter

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgment, are of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements. There were no key audit matters to
report in the year under review.

REPORT ON LAWFULNESS AND EFFECTIVENESS IN USE OF PUBLIC
RESOURCES

Gonclusion

As required by Article 229(6) of the Constitution, based on the audit procedures
performed, except for the mafters described in the Basis for Conclusion on LaMulness

Report of the Auditor-Ceneral on Mama Ngina University College for the ten months period ended 30 June, 2022
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and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources section of my report, I confirm that, nothing
else has come to my attention to cause me to believe that public resources have not been
applied laMully and in an effective way.

Basis for Conclusion

1. Failure to Appoint Board of Survey on Cash

The statement of financial position and Note 16 to the financial statements reflect a cash
and bank balance of Kshs.95,663,982. However, the appointment of a board of survey
was not done as required by law. ln addition, a standing imprest of Kshs.800,000 was
established for cash office operations. However, Management did not establish a
memorandum, contrary to Regulation 93(14) of the Public Finance Management (National
Government) Regulations. According to this Regulation, the holder of a standing imprest
shall keep a memorandum cash book to record all receipts and payments and the balance
on hand shall agree with the cash balance recorded in the cash book, and in the absence
of any receipts, the actual cash balances plus the expenses paid shall equal at all times
the fixed level of the imprest for which the imprest holder is personally responsible.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.

2. lrregular Procurement of Audio-Visua! Equipment

Review of procurement records revealed that Management procured an audio-visual
equipment at a contract price of Kshs.8,943,905, out of which Kshs.6,835,150 had been
paid to the contractor for the supply, delivery, installation, testing and commissioning of
audio-visual installation works for the proposed lecture theatre.

However, several unsatisfactory issues were observed as indicated below:

i. There was no budget for this procurement of the goods, works and services.

ii. The individual bid documents as submitted by the tenderers were not provided for
audit.

iii. The successful bidder did not meet all the technical specifications of the tender and
negotiations were indicated to have been made between the Management and the
firm to match the specifications of the equipment which did not meet the
specifications given, details of which were not provided for audit review.

iv. Failure to award the tender to lowest evaluated bidder resulted to loss of
Kshs.966,929.

v. The estimate from market survey and engineer's estimate of the equipment needed,
works to be done and indicative prices that could be used to gauge the estimated
price of the works, was not provided for audit verification.

vi. An undated copy of the signed contract indicated that the contract was to be
executed within a time frame of ten (10) days from the 01 October, 2021 lo 14
October, 2021 bul as at the end of the financial year, the works were not completed
leading to a breach of contract.

Report of the Auditor-General on Mama Ngina University Collegefor the ten months period ended 30 June, 2022
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vii. No retention money was deducted for the purpose of defects liability period.

viii. A physical verification at the time of audit revealed that system was not in use and
therefore there was no value for money realized from the purchase.

ln the circumstances, Management was in breach of the law.

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 2315 and ISSAI 2330. The standards
require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance about whether effective
processes and systems of internal control, risk management and overall governance were
operating effectively, in all material respects. I believe that the audit evidence I have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my conclusion.

Responsibilities of Management and The University Council

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual

Reporl of the Auditor-Ceneral on Mama Ngina University College for the ten months period ended 30 June, 2022
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3. Failure to Maintain a Fixed Assets Register

The statement of financial position and Note 24 to the financial statements reflect a
balance of Kshs.8,575,61'1 in respect of property, plant and equipment. However, the
fixed assets register was not provided for audit. Physical verification revealed that the
College has internet facilities, furniture, furnished lecture theatre, office block sitting on a
parcel of land, which were not disclosed in the financial statements. ln addition, the
College's property, plant and equipment were not tagged and could not be identified to
the College. This was contrary to Regulation 139(1) of the Public Finance Management
(National Government) Regulations, 2015 which provides that an Accounting Officer of a
National Government entity shall take full responsibility and ensure that proper control
systems exist for assets and that preventative mechanisms are in place to eliminate theft,
security threats, losses, wastage and misuse; ensuring that movement and conditions of
assets can be tracked; and that stock levels are at an optimum and economical level.

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 4000. The standard requires that I

comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance
about whether the activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the
financial statements are in compliance, in all material respects, with the authorities that
govern them. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for my conclusion.

REPORT ON EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROLS, RISK MANAGEMENT
AND GOVERNANCE

Conclusion

As required by Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015, based on the audit
procedures performed, I confirm that, nothing has come to my attention to cause me to
believe that internal controls, risk management and governance were not effective.

Basis for Conclusion



a

Basis) and for maintaining effective internal controls as Management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and for its assessment of the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and overall governance.

ln preparing the financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the
College's ability to continue to sustain services, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to sustainability of services and using the applicable basis of accounting unless
Management is aware of the intention to terminate the College or to cease operations.

Management is also responsible for the submission of the financial statements to the
Auditor-General in accordance with the provisions of Section 47 of the Public Audit Act,
2015.

ln addition to the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements described above, Management is also responsible for ensuring that the
activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are
in compliance with the authorities which govern them, and that public resources are
applied in an effective way.

The University Council is responsible for overseeing the College's financial reporting
process, reviewing the effectiveness of how Management monitors compliance with
relevant legislative and regulatory requirements, ensuring that effective processes and
systems are in place to address key roles and responsibilities in relation to governance
and risk management, and ensuring the adequacy and effectiveness of the control
environment.

Auditor-General's Responsibilities for the Audit

The audit objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor's report that includes my opinion in accordance with the provisions
of Section 48 of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit the audit report in compliance with
Article 229(7) of the Constitution. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with lSSA|s will always detect
a material misstatement and weakness when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.

ln addition to the audit of the financial statements, a compliance audit is planned and
performed to express a conclusion about whether, in all material respects, the activities,
financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are in
compliance with the authorities that govern them and that public resources are applied in
an effective way, in accordance with the provisions of Article 229(6) of the Constitution
and submit the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution.

Further, in planning and performing the audit of the financial statements and audit of
compliance, I consider internal controls in order to give an assurance on the effectiveness

Report of the Auditor-General on Mama Ngina University College for the ten montlu period ended 30 June, 2022
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of internal controls, risk management and governance processes and systems in
accordance with the provisions of Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit
the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution. My consideration of
the internal controls would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal controls that
might be material weaknesses under the lSSAls. A material weakness is a condition in
which the design or operation of one or more of the internal controls components does
not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused by error or fraud in
amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may
occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal controls may not prevent or detect
misstatements and instances of non-compliance. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
University's policies and procedures may deteriorate.

As part of an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls, I exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. I also:

ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal controls.

o

a

o

a

a

a

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of Management's use of the applicable basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the College's
ability to continue to sustain its services. lf I conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
I am required to draw attention in the auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my audit
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the College to cease to
continue to sustain its services.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information and
business activities of the College to express an opinion on the financial statements.

Perform such other procedures as I consider necessary in the circumstances.

Report of the Auditor-Ceneral on Mama Ngina University Collegefor the ten monlhs period ended 30 June, 2022
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I communicate with Management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

internal controls that are identified during the audit.

I also provide Management with a statement that I have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence and
where applicable, related safeguards.

CP BS
AUDITOR-GENERAL

Nairobi

13 June,2023

Report of the Auditor-General on Mama Ngina University Collegefor the ten months period ended 30 June, 2022
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Note 2022
Revenue from non-exchange transactions Kshs
Government Grants 60,266,789

Revenue from exchange transactions

913,450
Other income

8 3,000

Total revenue
61,193,239

Personnel Emoluments 9 17,109,374

10 996,520
Depreciation and amortization expense 28,519
Telephone,Electricty and Water 12 258,185
Repairs and maintenance 288,741
Contracted Professional Services 14 142.800

Operation expenses 2,622,624
Total expenses

21,446,763
(Surplus)/Deficit for the period 39,736,476

IEr Id rrI
r r
E rETIE IIr

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCI
FOR'TT,N MONTHS IiNI) I.]D 3OTH JTINE 2022

Prof. James B. Kung,u, Ph.D. CpA amuri Peter
Princi Finance Officer

ICPAK Member No.29973

Date

Dr. David A. Oginde
Chairman of Council

ob\st'\r*rDate Date

Tuition & Other Fees

Expenses

Council Members Expenses

The Financial Statements set out on Pages I - l8 were signed on behalf of the University
Council members by:

I

I
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 3OTH JUNE 2022

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and Bank Balances

Receivable from exchange transactions

Receivable from non-exchange transactions

Inventories

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, Plant and Equipments

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables from exchange transactions

Payment paid in advance

Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS

Revenue Reserve

Capital Fund

TOTAL NET ASSETS ANI) LIAI}ILITIES

NOTES

16

l7
l8
l9

24

20

2l

22

23

Prof. Jam
Principal

B. Kung'u, Ph.D.
-\

CPA Kamuri Peter
Finance Officer
ICPAK Member
No.29973

Dr. David A. Oginde
Chairman of Council

1

2)a3

2

,","...ol"try/\"-) D"t"..&{.0y{\L} Date.

\r 0rt

2022

Kshs.

95,663,982

163,777,608

43,500

318,179

2s9,803,269

388,996

140,550

529

26

202.849,334

65.000,000

75,6t18,5
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REVALUATION

RESERVE

REVENUE

RESTR!'E

CAPITAT

FUND

TOTAL

Govemment Grants 65,000,000 65,000,000

CapitalReserve 163,112,858

(Defrcit)/Surplus for the period 39.736.416

Note: Capital Funds are grants received from the government for development projects.

r63,il2,858

39,736.476

3

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
FOR TEN MONTHS ENDED 3OTH.IUNE 2022

Balance as at 3fth June 2021

202.U9.334 65,000,000 267.W9,334Balance as at 30th June 2022



STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR TEN MONTHS ENDEI) 3OTH.IUNE 2022

Cash flow from operating activities
Surplus tbr the period

Non-Cash Movement
Depreciation

Receivables

Payables

Prepayments

Cash flow from operating activities

Net cash flow from Operating Activities

Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Property, Plant and Equipments

Net Cash Flow from Investing Activities

Cash Flow from Financing Activities
KU Development Grants
Govemment Capital Grants

Net Cash Flow from Financing Activities

Net Cash Increase in Cash & Cash Equivalent

Net Cash & Cash Equivalent b\f
Cash & Cash Equivalent as at 30th June 2022

Analysis of Cash & Cash Equivalents

Cash and Bank Balances

Prof. James B. Kung'u, Ph.D,

ll

l9
l8

17

20

2l

24

22

Z)

16

Principal
CPA Kamuri Peter
Finance Officer
ICPAK Member
No.29973

Dr. Da A. Oginde
Ch an of Council

t

\

'1il13Date.....SLlsf D"^+ o"t"....h(u*J.u*. D"," .ll.[.9.Y.1
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Inventories

Debtors

NOTES
2022

Kshs.

39,736,476

l9

(318,179 )
( 43,s00 )

(t63,777,608)

388,996

50

I 741

I 746

130

130

163,1r2,858

65

ll
95,663,982
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5
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14 7 Months ilpeneses paid by (Utleptnn, He*rty ald S'ater 1,900,000 t,900,000 2.4r6.666 67 258, r85 2.r58.482
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996.510 I76,8ll 7 Months trpenesespaid by l(UCourcilAhwarces 1,108.000 r,l7i.lil.jj

18,5r9 28,i19kprecntnn
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111,610,6.t0,00 21,.1.16,763 101,18J,877Totaltrpnditun r{8J56,768 118J56,,768

19,716,r?6(DeficitlSudu for th peft d

lie lniren as ntllls ofer es

STATEMENT OF COMPARISON OF BUDGET AND ACTUAL
AMOUNTS

FOR TEN MONTHS ENDED 3OTH JUNE 2022

r2i.6i0,610.00

tlr.408,000
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NOTE 2: Statement of compliance and basis of preparation

The University's hnancial statements have been prepared in accordance with and comply with the Accrual

Basis of Accounting method under the Intemational Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS). The

financial statements are presented in Kenya shillings, which is the functional and reporting currency of

the Universitl'. The accounting policies have been consistentlv applied to all the 1,ears ptesented

The financial statements have been prepared on the basis of historical cost, unless stated otherwise. The

cash flow statement is prepared using the indirect method. The financial statements are prepared on

accrual basis.

NOTE 3: Adoption of New and Revised Standards

i) Relevant new standards and amendments to published standatds effective for the year

ended 30 Jrune 2022

Standard
IPSAS 41:

Financial
Instruments

Effective date and impact:
Applicable: l" lanuary 2022:

The objective of IPSAS 4l is to establish principles for the financial reporting o[
financial assets and [abi]ities that will present relevant and useful information to

users of financial statements for their assessment <>f the amounts, timing and

uncertaintl' of an entirl"s future cash flows.

IPSAS 41 provides uscrs of financial statements with more useful information than

IPSAS 29, bY:

,\pplying a single classification and measutement modcl for financial assets

that considers the characteristics of the asset's cash flows and the obiective

f< rr which the assct is held;

a

Applving a single fonvard-looking expected credit loss model that is

applicable to all financial instruments subject to impairment testing; and

6

a

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE 1: General Information

The Universiry is established by and derives its authority and accountability from the Univetsity

Act 201,2. The Universiry is wholly owned by the Government of Kenya and is domiciled in

Kenya. The Universiry's principal activity is to provide qualiry education and training.
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IPSAS 42

Social

llcncfits

ii)

. Appl)'ing an improved hcdgc accounting model that broadens the hedgrng

arrangements in scope of thc guidancc. -l'he model develops a stronS link
betwe cn an entitl,'s risk management strategies and the accounting treatment

for instruments held as part ()f the risk managemcnt strateglr.

Standatd E,ffective date and impact:
Applicable: l" l anuary 2022
'l'he obiective of this Standard is to improve the relevance, faithful
representativeness and comparabiliq' of the information that a reporting entity

providcs in its financial statemcnts about social benefits. The information ptovided
should help users of the Frnancial statemcnts and general purpose Frnancial reports

as sess:

(a) 'fhe narure of such social bencFtts provided by the entiry;

(b) Thc ko' fcarures of the operation of those social benefit schemes; and

(c) 1'hc impact of such social benefits providcd on the entitv's Frnancial performance,

frnancial position and cash flows.

Standard Effective date and impact:
,\mendmcnts to
()thcr II)S-\S

rcsulting from
II'S,\S 41,

l'inancial

Instrumcnts

Applicable: lst I rntrry 2022:

a) Amendmcnts to IPSr\S 5, to updatc the guidancc related to the

components o[ borrowing costs which rvcre inadvertendv

omittcd rvhen IPSAS 41 was issued.

b) ,\mendments to IPSAS 30, rcgarding illustrative cxamples on
hedgrng and credit risk rvhich rvere inadvertendy omitted when
II']Sr\S 41 rvas issued.

c) ;\mendments to IPSAS 30, to update the guidancc for
accounting for Frnancial guarantee cofltracts which werc
inadvertendy omitted rvhen IPS-,\S 41 rvas issued.

Amendments to IPSAS 33, to update the guidance on classiS'ing

Frnancial instrumcnts on initial adoption of accrual basis IPSAS which

were inadvertendy omitted rvhe n IPSAS 41 was issucd.

New and amended standards and interpretations in issue but not yet effective in the
year ended 30 Jurre 2022

Standard Effective date and impact:

7
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Standard
IPSAS 41:

ljinancial

Instrutnents

Effective date and impact:
Applicable: l" lanuary 2023:

'Ihe objective of IPSr\S 41 is to establish principles for thc financial

reporting of Frnancial assets and liabilitres that will present relevant and

useful information to users of financial statements for their assessment

of the amounts, timing and uncertainq, of an cntity's future cash flows.

IPSAS 41 provides users of hnancial statements with more useful

information than IPSAS 29, by:

. App\'ing a single classification and measurement model for

hnancial assets that considers the characteristics of the asset's

cash flows and the object-ive for which the asset is held;

. Applying a single forward-looking expected credit loss model

that is applicable to all financial instruments subject to

impairment testing; and

. Applving an improved hedge accounting model that broadens

the hedging arrangements in scope of the guidance. -Ihe model

develops a stJong link between an entiry*'s risk management

strategies and the accounting treatment for instruments held as

part of the risk managemeflt strategy.

ti
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Standard
IPSAS 42:

Social llcncfits

Amendments

to Other

IPSAS

resulting from

IPSAS 41,

Financial

Instruments

Effective date and impact:
Applicable: l" Janluary 2023

The objective o[ this Standard is to improve the relevance, faithful

representativcness and comparabiliq of the information that a reporting

entitv provides in its financial statements about social benefits. I'he

information provided should help users of the financial statements and

gcneral purpose financial rep()rts asscss:

(a) 'Ihe naturc oF such social benefits provided by the entitv;

(b) 'I'he key' fcarures o[ the operation of those social benefit schemes;

and

(c) 1'hc impact of such social benefits provided on the entity's financial

performancc, financial position and cash flows.

Applicable: lst I anuary 2023:

a) ,\mendments to IPSr\S 5, to update the guidance related to the

components of borrowing costs which were inadvettendy

omitted when IPS,\S 41 was issued.

b) Amendments to IPSI\S 30, regarding illustrative examples on

hedging and crcdit risk which rvere inadvertendy omitted when

IPSAS 41 rvas issued.

c) ..\mendments to IPSAS 30, to update the guidance for

accounting for frnancial guarantee contracts which were

inadvertendy omitted rvhen IPSAS 41 was issued.

Amendments to IPSr\S 33, to update the guidance on classifying

financial instruments on initial adoption of accrual basis IPSAS which

werc inadvcrtcntly omitted when IPSAS 41 rvas issued.

iii) Eatly adoption of standards

-l'hc Ltnivcrsi5' did not carll'- xd1;pt an)' new or amcndcd standards nt year 2022

NOTE 4: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

a) Revenue Recognition

I
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i)

'Ihese are revenues received by the Universiry from the Government for recurrent expenditures. The

University recognizes revenue from non-cxchange ffansaction on accrual basis.

i1) llcvcnuc from exchanpc transacti()n

The Llniversiry recognizes reveflue from exchangc transaction on accrual basis.'l'his is done when the

students register and the amount of revenue can be reliably measured and it's probable that the

economic benefit associated with the transaction rvill flow to the Universin'.

b) Budget information

fhc original budget for FY 2021-2022 was approved by the lrlinist4' of I')ducation and there were no

subsequent revisions or additional appropriations during the year undet review

The annual budget is prepared on the accrual basis, that is, all planned costs and income are presented rn

a single statement to determine the needs of the LIniversir)'.

c) Property, plant and equipment

All propertl, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Cost includes expenditure that is direcdy attributable to the acquisidon of the items. $7hen signiFrcant

parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the University recognizes

such patts as individual assets with specihc useful lives and depreciates them accordingly. Iikewise, when

o, major inspection is performed, its cost is recognized in the carrying amouflt of the plant and equipment

as a replacement if the recognition criteria arc satisfied.

All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in surplus or deFrcit as incurred. Where an asset is

acquired in a non-exchange transaction for nil or nominal consideration the asset is initially measured at

its fair value.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis at annual rates estimated to write off the carrying values

of the assets over their expected useful lives.

The annual depreciarion rates in use are:

Fumirure and Equipment - 10oh

Computers Hardware - 30%o

d) Financial Instruments

l0
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llcccivablcs

Rcccivablcs from exchange transactions (lrccs) are recognized rvhen srudents rcgistcr with the Universiry.
Rcccivablcs from non-exchange (other dcbtors) ttansactions are recognized whcn an invoice is raised or
at a time when the debt is detetminablc.

e) Financial Liabilities

Invcntorics

Inventories arc measured at the lower of cost and net realizable valuc. Cost incurred in bringing the

product to its present location and condition is included in the cost of inventories. Inventories are

recognizcd as expenses when deploved for urilization or consumption in the ordinary'course of operations

of the Universih'.
As at 30'h June 2022, the Universiry* College did a stock take and the stock taking figures were teconciled

for pre paration of the Financial Statement.

f) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprisc cash on hand and cash at bank, short-term dcposits on call and highly

li<1uid investments with an original maruriry <>[ thrce months or less, which arc readily convertible to
known amounts of cash and are subiect to insignificant risk of changes in value. Ilank account balances

includc amounts held at various commcrcial banks at the end of the financial vear. For the purposes of
thesc financial statements, cash and cash cquivalents comprise of cash at bank at thc end of the financial
year.

In the ycar 2021-2022, the Universin' College had Kshs. 95,663,982 in cash and cash cquivalcnt.

g) Subsequent events
'I'hcrc have becn no cvents subsequcnt to the financial ycar end with a significant impact on the Ftnancial

statcments f<rr thc year ended.fune 30,2022.

h) Related Parties
The Universiq' regards a related parn'as a pers()n or an endn rvith the abiliq' to excrt control individuall,r'
or jointly, or to exercise significant influcncc ovcr the cntin', or vice vetsa. l'hc National Govemment,
Council Nlembers and lvlembers of Nlanagemcnt Board are regarded as related parties.

'I'he (louncil expenses in terms of honoraria, sittir-rg allorvances and othcr cxpcnscs are indicated in note
10 of thc financial statement.

i) University Petformance
In thc ycar 2021 /2022 the University received Kshs 60,266,789 Govcrnmcnt (lrants, Kshs 913,450
'l'uition and othcr fees and Kshs. 3,000 from other incomcs.
Universitl' I.)xpcnditures are composcd of Pcrsonncl limoluments, Operations and Nlaintenance. The

Expendirurc for the vear 2021 /2022 am()untcd to Kshs 21,446,163, under the two categories as follows;
Pcrsonncl Ilmoluments Kshs. 17,109,314= anrJ, Operation and Nlaintenance Kshs. 4,331 ,389=

\

il
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1. SIGNIFICANT JUDGMENTS AND SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

I'he preparation of the Llniversifl"s financial statcments in conformin' rvith IPSAS rcquires management
to make judgmcnts, estimates and assumptions that affcct thc reported amounts of revenues, expenses,

assets and liabilities, and thc disclosure of contingent liabilities, at thc end of the reporting pcriod.
Horvever, uncertaint)' about these assumptions and cstimates could result in <>utcomes that requirc a

material adiustment to the carrving am()unt of the asset or liabiliw affected in furure periods.

Estimates and assumptrons
'l'he Llniversitl did not make any key assumptions concerning the furure and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material ad,ustment
to the carrvin€J amounts of assets and liabilitics rvithin the next financial vcar.

Useful lives and residual values
f'he useful lives and residual values of assets are assessed using thc following indicators to inform potential
future use and value from disposal:

Processes

12
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b

NOTES TO THE FINANCIIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Quarter 3

Quarter 4

NOTF] 7 Tuition & Othcr Fees

Tuition (KUCCPS)

Tuition (Computer Packages)

Admission Application Fees

Basic Pay

House Allowance

Commuting and Bus Fare

Passage and Baggage

Kshs.

24.106.715

36 160 074

60 789

Kshs.

687.450

226 000

Kshs.

J 000

Kshs.

8,366,125

4,775,946

3,129,653

90,600

36,000

l3

Responsibility Allowance

NOTE 6 Government Grants

NOTE g Other Incomes

Nrr.rF o PERSONNEL EllOLtrltENTS

I3J5q

3.000
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NSSF Employer Contribution

Part Time Teaching

NOTE l0 Council Members Expenses

Sitting Allowance

Honoraria

Other Expenses

NOTE I1 Depreciation and amortization exrrense

Depreciation of Computers

Depreciation of Equipments

NOTE l2 Telenhone.Electrictv and Water

Telephone and Postage

Electricity Expenses

Water and Conservancy

Repairs and maintenance

Maintenance of Ground and Roads

Maintenance of Buildings

l_l

NOTE 13

t4

49.800

661,250

!1_J0e;1A

Kshs.

520,000

261,000

215,520

996,520

Kshs.

24,515

4,004

28,519

Kshs.

43,245

160,302

54,638

258,185
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Maintenance of Fumiture and Equipments

NOTE I4 Contracted Professional Sen'ices

Consu ltancy

NOTE 15 OPERATION EXPENSE

Stationery

Cleaning Materials

Staff Uniforms

General Office Equipments

Office Consumables

C)ffice Tea

Teaching Materials

Examination Expenses

Library Materials

Newspapers

Admission Expenses

Student Activities

Advertising and Publication

Community Outreach

Health Unit Expenses

Cutlery

a

t.

I

l

I

I

I

l5

26,460

NJII

Kshs.

142.800

142.800

Kshs.

413,516

68,613

I I 1,960

318,760

68,438

14,598

30,084

5,080

6,575

15,840

6,489

4,000

189,038

28,172

11,820

44,756
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Principal's Committee Expenses

Sports and Games

Motor Vehicles Fuel

Motor Vehicles Repairs

Gas and other Fuel

Council Other Expenses

Computerization and Networking

Internet Services

Bank Charges

Travelling and Accommodation

Cash and Bank Balances

Equity Bank Fees Collection A\C 0660282250603

Co-operative Bank Fees Collection A\C 01129556920900

KCB Capitation A\C 1293058254

Familv Bank A\C 004000038829

Receivable from Exchange Transactions

Kenyatta University( Development Fund)
Kenyatta University(Fees receivable)

NOTE 16

I

NOTE I7

t6

8.820

63,640

7,870

11.974

15,651

680,9s9

76.460

240,t20

41.941

137.450

2,622.624

Kshs.

353,200

163,142

36.989.233

58.158.407

95,663,982

Kshs.

163,112,858
637,800
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Student Fees Arrears (KUCCPS)

Student Fees Arrears (CP)

Total

NOTII l8 Receivablc liom Non-Exchanse Transactions

Sarova White Sands Hotel

Total

NOTE l9 Inventories

Maintenance stock

Stationen' stock

Cleaning Material stock

Drugs stock

Total

NOTE 20 l'rade and other payables from exchanse transactions

Pav As You Eam

vAl'

Withholdine Tax

Total

NOTE
2t

l

li
I

L

I

i

I

I

Fees paid in advance

Pavment naid in advance

t7

10450

16,500

t63.777.608

Kshs.

43,500

43,500

1,400

265.414

26.718

24,648

318.179

26.850

170,272

r91.874

388,996
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NOTE
'tt

NOTE
23

NOTE 2,1

Surplus fbr the Year
Capital Reserve

Govemment Capital Grants

Total

Total

Total

FURNITURE
&

EQUIPMENTS

10.)

COMPUTER

HARDWARE

30.4

CAPITAL
WORK

IN PROGRESS

0"h

TOTAL

DEPRECIATION
RATES

COSTA/ALUATION
As at 30th lune 2021

Additions

Depreciation and
Impairment

As at 30th June 2021

Charge for the Year

480.490

4.004

980.600

24,515

7,143,040 8,604,130

28,519

NET BOOK VALUE

l8

140.550

Kshs.
39,736,476

163.112.858

202.8,t9.333

Kshs.

6s,000,000

55J09J00

Revenue Reserve

Canital Fund

As at 30th June2022 480,490 980,600 7,143,040 8,604,130

As at 30th June2022 4,004 24,515 28,519

7,143,040 8,575,61IAs at30th June2022 476,486 956,085
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